_h_
HALTON Employment, Learning, Skills and

BOROUGH COUNCIL . .
Community Policy and Performance
Board

Monday, 11 November 2013 at 6.30 p.m.
Council Chamber, Runcorn Town Hall

Chief Executive

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Susan Edge (Chairman) Labour

Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh Labour
(Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Lauren Cassidy Labour
Councillor Harry Howard Labour
Councillor Peter Lloyd Jones Labour
Councillor Geoffrey Logan Labour
Councillor Andrew MacManus Labour
Councillor Stan Parker Labour
Councillor Joe Roberts Labour
Councillor Christopher Rowe Liberal Democrat
Councillor Geoff Zygadllo Labour

Please contact Michelle Simpson on 0151 511 8708 or e-mail
michelle.simpson@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 8 January 2014



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
ltem No.
1. MINUTES

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST (INCLUDING PARTY WHIP
DECLARATIONS)

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary interests, to
leave the meeting during any discussion or voting on the item.

3. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES

5. SSP MINUTES

6. DEVELOPMENT OF POLICY ISSUES

(A) LOCAL ECONOMIC ASSESSMENT (LEA) -
PRESENTATION

(B) OUTCOMES OF 2011 SKILLS FOR LIFE SURVEY AND
IMPROVEMENTS IN HALTON

(C) CHILDREN AND ENTERPRISE QUARTERLY POLICY
UPDATE

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING

(A) DRAFT WELFARE REFORM SCRUTINY REVIEW
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

(B) BUSINESS PLANNING 2014 -17

Page No.

17 -39

40 - 47

48 - 59

60 - 97

98 - 104

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and

instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community

Policy & Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Policy and Resources

SUBJECT: Public Question Time
WARD(s): Borough-wide
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

1.2

2.0

3.0

3.1

To consider any questions submitted by the Public in accordance with
Standing Order 34(9).

Details of any questions received will be circulated at the meeting.
RECOMMENDED: That any questions received be dealt with.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Standing Order 34(9) states that Public Questions shall be dealt with as
follows:-

(i) A total of 30 minutes will be allocated for dealing with questions
from members of the public who are residents of the Borough, to
ask questions at meetings of the Policy and Performance Boards.

(i)  Members of the public can ask questions on any matter relating to
the agenda.

(i) Members of the public can ask questions. Written notice of
questions must be given by 4.00 pm on the working day prior to
the date of the meeting to the Committee Services Manager. At
any one meeting no person/organisation may submit more than
one question.

(iv) One supplementary question (relating to the original question) may
be asked by the questioner, which may or may not be answered at
the meeting.

(v) The Chair or proper officer may reject a question if it:-

e Is not about a matter for which the local authority has a
responsibility or which affects the Borough;

e Is defamatory, frivolous, offensive, abusive or racist;

e |s substantially the same as a question which has been put at
a meeting of the Council in the past six months; or



4.0

5.0

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Page 4

e Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information.

In the interests of natural justice, public questions cannot relate to
a planning or licensing application or to any matter which is not
dealt with in the public part of a meeting.

The Chairperson will ask for people to indicate that they wish to
ask a question.

PLEASE NOTE that the maximum amount of time each
questioner will be allowed is 3 minutes.

If you do not receive a response at the meeting, a Council Officer
will ask for your name and address and make sure that you
receive a written response.

Please bear in mind that public question time lasts for a maximum
of 30 minutes. To help in making the most of this opportunity to
speak:-

Please keep your questions as concise as possible.

Please do not repeat or make statements on earlier questions as
this reduces the time available for other issues to be raised.

Please note public question time is not intended for debate —
issues raised will be responded to either at the meeting or in
writing at a later date.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Children and Young People in Halton - none.

Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton - none.

A Healthy Halton — none.

A Safer Halton — none.

Halton’s Urban Renewal — none.



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 5

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

None.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



Page 6 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community

Policy and Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive

SUBJECT: Executive Board Minutes
WARD(s): Boroughwide
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

1.2

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The Minutes relating to the Community Portfolio which have been
considered by the Executive Board are attached at Appendix 1 for
information.

The Minutes are submitted to inform the Policy and Performance Board
of decisions taken in their area.

RECOMMENDATION: That the Minutes be noted.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES
Children and Young People in Halton

None

Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton

None

A Healthy Halton

None

A Safer Halton

None

Halton’s Urban Renewal



6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 7

None

RISK ANALYSIS

None.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
None.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



Page 8

APPENDIX 1

Extract of Executive Board Minutes Relevant to the Employment, Learning
Skills and Community Policy and Performance Board

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 5 SEPTEMBER 2013

EXB58 RUGBY LEAGUE WORLD CUP 2013

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities,
which updated Members on the plans for the Rugby League World Cup 2013
(RLWC 2013).

The Board was advised that the RLWC 2013 would run between 26
October 2013 and 30 November 2013. Halton Stadium would host the USA
team Training Base after their arrival in England. It was reported that a number
of partner agencies (the Halton consortium), had prepared a delivery plan,
which was attached to the report at Appendix A. The Halton consortium would
prepare detailed plans for a Civic Reception, Coaching Master Class, Open
Training Session and Community Engagement Activity. The Board noted that
the delivery plan was intended to attract engagement across the age ranges in
sport and cultural activities, with the opportunity to deliver further activity in other
community settings.

Other opportunities for services to re-brand their activities during the
tournament were detailed in the report, with the opportunity to link into a number
of national initiatives such as Try Reading and Education Resource.

RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted and the Delivery
Plan, attached at Appendix A, be approved.

EXB59 WIDNES RECREATION SITE DEVELOPMENT

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities,
which provided Members with an update on the re-development of the Widnes
Recreation Site, Liverpool Road, Widnes.

The Board was advised that a business plan had been prepared which
contained background detail, project outline and associated financial
implications for the development of a sports facility at the former recreation site.
It was noted that the new sports facilities would include new changing facilities,
an indoor activity room, kitchen facilities, an external multi use games area, a
new cricket pitch, reconfiguration of the outdoor sports pitches and
improvements to the car park. The Board noted that the draft business plan



Page 9

would be sent to Sport England for comments.

It was reported that the estimated £2.680m required to fund the scheme
would be raised by the proposed sale of 3 acres of land at the Widnes
Recreation site for housing development.

The report constituted a preliminary estimate report for the purposes of
Procurement Standing Orders 2.1.

RESOLVED: That

1) the proposals for the redevelopment of the former Widnes
Recreation Site, Liverpool Road, Widnes, be approved;

2) Council be recommended to approve inclusion of the former
Widnes Recreation Site development within the Council’s Capital
Programme;

3) the Strategic Director, Communities, the Operational Director,
Legal and Democratic Services, in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Community and Sport, be authorised to implement the
project, provided planning permission is obtained and the indicative
prices outlined in the report are not exceeded;

4) Officers be authorised to begin public consultation with Sport
England on the sports facility proposed within the Business Plan,
attached at Appendix A; and

5) Officers be authorised to proceed with planning applications and
place the proposed housing land on the open market to obtain
tendered prices for the build cost.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 17 OCTOBER 2013

EXB93 THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION GROWTH GRANT

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Children and
Enterprise, which updated Members on the Liverpool City Region (LCR)
Business Growth Grant Programme.

The Board was reminded that at its meeting on 11 July 2013, it
considered a progress report on the LCR Growth Grant Programme. It was



Page 10

reported that the Growth Grant could support businesses which planned to
invest in capital or equipment which would directly create or safeguard jobs and

increase

business output. It was noted that the LCR Growth Grant was

designed to unlock private sector investment, with a leverage ratio of 5:1.

The report detailed the eligible costs for which funding could be given
which included capital expenditure, investment in new technologies, systems
and software and employment and training aid. The report further outlined how
the scheme would operate in Halton and the key stages of the preferred
Delivery Model, the latter supported by information in Appendices 1 and 2.

RESOLVED: That

1)

the proposed mechanism to be used to deliver funds to Halton
businesses through The Liverpool City Region Growth Grant, detailed
in Appendices 1 & 2, be agreed;

the partnership agreement between LCR Local Enterprise Partnership
and Halton Borough Council for the delivery of The Liverpool City
Region Growth Grant be accepted; and

the award of Liverpool City Region Growth Grant be delegated to the
Operational Director Employment, Enterprise and Property in
consultation with the Operational Director, Finance, the Operational
Director, Legal and Democratic Services and the Portfolio Holder for
Economic Development.



Page 11 Agenda Item 5

REPORT TO: Employment Learning, Skills and Community

Policy and Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive

SUBJECT: Specialist Strategic Partnership minutes
WARD(s): Boroughwide
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The Minutes relating to the Economic Development Portfolio which
have been considered by the Specialist Strategic Partnership are
attached at Appendix 1 for information.

RECOMMENDATION: That the Minutes be noted.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES
Children and Young People in Halton
None

Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton
None

A Healthy Halton

None

A Safer Halton

None

Halton’s Urban Renewal

None



6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 12

RISK ANALYSIS
None.
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

None.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



Page 13

Employment, Learning & Skills SSP
Executive Group Meeting Minutes

Kingsway Learning Centre 29 July 2013

Present

Wesley Rourke HBC - Economy, Enterprise & Property (Chair)
Hitesh Patel Halton CAB

Debbie Houghton HBC — Children & Enterprise Policy Team

Debbie Ainsworth  Job Centre Plus

Clir Eddie Jones  Halton Borough Council

Tracy Ryan HBC — Children & Enterprise Policy Team (Minutes)
Simon Clough HBC Learning & Achievement Services

Shelah Semoff HBC

Janine Peterson  DWP

and Skills anTmERise

Cleo Pollard Halton Family Voice
ltem Action
1.0 | Apologies

Kevin Smith, Riverside College
Siobhan Saunders, HBC
Clare Bradbury Priory Partnership

2.0 | Minutes and Matters Arising from 13.5.13
The minutes were agreed as an accurate record.
3.0 | Introduction to Community Budgets

Shelah Semoff delivered the presentation outlining an
introduction to Community Budgets. The presentation and
hand-outs are attached.

Core idea involves a range of partners agreeing common
outcomes, pool resources etc — it builds on the work of ‘Total
Place’. Will assist local communities to have more power and
control over local services. Community Budgets help ensure
agencies/services make better use of resources to meet the
needs of individuals and the community. Supporting local
partnerships and governance arrangements.  Sixteen pilot
schemes have been undertaken and additional themes have
now been added.

A number of barriers and factors for success were highlighted.
Lessons learnt from the pilots have identified several areas for
improvement across services/partners.

LGA commissioned Ernst and Young to undertake a review of

1



Page 14

community budgets, their report indicates better outcomes etc
are achieved from this approach.

Questions/discussion arising from presentation:

WR - Are Community Budgets feasible in Halton?

SS - Yes, small local authority, good partnership working

JP (JCP) Unsure as partners may be wary about pooling
budgets due to austerity measures and organisational changes
taking place. May be more around pooling other resources.
Agreed with idea of mapping needs etc

CP — There may be issues around accountability, as a ‘client’
this would be welcomed and suggest taking a bold move to
establish community budgets in Halton would be good.

SC — Sought clarity on what is involved, is it about pooled
budgets or more about pooling services to avoid duplication.
Breadth of type of jobs for different skills now available to
schools via new software system, as an authority it's about
influencing schools to promote this.

EJ — Different organisations have different agendas which can
be difficult to align as not one organisation, it makes sense but
the detail of this is important. Little bit wary of this.

DH — First priority should be understanding and considering
the ‘client/customers’ needs, review gaps. How much
duplication is there? Are we making best use of the resources
that we have available?

HP — A co-ordinated approach to advise people on getting into
work and the skills etc needed would be useful.
Advice/signposting could be given by other non- traditional
organisations but we are all offering the same advice in a co-
ordinated way.

4.0

Discussion around Key Questions

COMMUNITY
BUDGETS KEY QUEST

What are the key issues - priorities to focus on
Having a co-ordinated approach to:
a) support/assist people into work
b) jobs for the future - learning and skills for people/pupils
c) sign-post information, advice and services that are
already available

Barriers
Scenario AN Other is out of work and needs a job:

e JCP arrange back to work meetings with AN Other,
develop case load, complete a skills analysis and action
plan to support until back into employment — funding
has driven behaviour of JCP. Due to Localism JCP now




Page 15

e, AREEE
in a position to do things totally different.
Other partners tasked/funded to provide similar support.
¢ Need to agree the sustainable Impacts, requires bite-
size chunks as huge agenda to achieve
e NEET - already working closely with JCP but data
sharing has been a significant barrier that we have now
overcome
Members indicated committed to doing more along the ideas of
community budgets but need to be realistic. Agreed to select a
priority group to work with and perhaps within a geographical
location — a designated ward. Pilot to be developed.
Action:
e Develop key specification to progress Halton’s pilot
approach to Community Budgets SS/DH/WR
¢ Research and Intelligence to provide geographical
data at individual ward and area forum basis SS/DH/WR
(Appleton, Riverside and Kingsway & Windmill Hill,
Castle ward, Norton North and Norton South -
Shelah/Debbie to follow-up via Neil McSweeney
¢ Identify caseload perspective - cohort group to be
agreed — possibly 18-25 year olds SS/DH/WR
¢ Information from Simon Clough on work/progress
with NEETs and JCP Complete -

o Contact Kevin Smith, Riverside College for update
on targeted ward level work

e Update/progress to be reported to the HSPB in
September

Attached

=
ELS PPB Skills info
from Simon Clough.dc

TR

SS/DH/WR

5.0

AOB
None

Meeting dates: 2pm at Kingsway Learning Centre, Widnes

Please note change of date from 21/10 to 14/10 for next

e 14 October (Theme Mersey Gateway)
e 16 December’13
e 10 February ’14




Page 16 Agenda ltem 6a

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community
Policy and Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Children and Enterprise

PORTFOLIO: Economic Development

SUBJECT: Local Economic Assessment (LEA)

WARDS: Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

2.0

3.0

To consider the Local Economic Assessment for the Borough of Halton.
RECOMMENDATION: That

(1) The intelligence provided by the Halton Local Economic Assessment be
utilised when formulating the key strategic documents of the Council

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Local Economic Assessment is a key evidence base for the Borough of
Halton, providing an accurate picture of the economic performance. The LEA
looks to link in with the strategic priorities of the Liverpool City Region and will
be key in providing supporting evidence for funding programmes, such as the
European funding programme.

Scope of the Report

The Halton LEA focuses upon the following key themes which influence the
performance of a given local economy:-

Economic Value and Growth by sector
Employment and Economic Activity
Skills

Economic Inactivity and Unemployment
Land and Property markets

The draft Halton LEA, where possible, utilises information contained in previous
Halton Economic Reviews to provide a longer timeframe for the analysis of
structural changes in the economy of Halton. The utilisation of an economic
forecasting model to anticipate, for example GVA and employment growth, was
a key element of previous reviews. The procurement of a bespoke, Halton
specific, economic model to underpin the production of a Halton LEA proved
prohibitively expensive. The modelling of the future performance of the
economy of Halton will, therefore, be provided by Cheshire East Council
utilising the Cheshire and Warrington Economic Model, amended to include
Halton. The results of that exercise will be available in July 2011 and will be
factored into the next iteration of the report.



Page 17

Key Themes

Economic Value and Growth by sector

Gross value added (GVA) is a measure in economics of the value of goods and
services produced in an area, industry or sector of an economy.

Key LEA findings:-

The 2012 Merseyside Partnership Economic Review estimated that in 2009
Halton provided £2.3bn of the Liverpool City Region’s GVA (around 10%).
The Liverpool City Region has a number of growth sectors that will have an
impact on Halton. The identified sectors are: Creative and Digital
Industries; Advanced Manufacturing; Finance and Professional Services;
Life Sciences; Low Carbon; Visitor Economy.

The 2012 Merseyside Partnership Economic Review forecasts long-term
employment growth in life sciences i.e. Daresbury.

Employment and Economic Activity

This theme focusses on the workforce, wage levels and business demography.

Key LEA findings:-

Halton has a higher proportion of people working in full-time jobs when
compared regionally and nationally.

Halton’s workforce is similar when compared nationally and regionally.
Halton does have a lower level of Managers and a higher level of Machine
operatives.

The average weekly wage for a worker in Halton is higher than the North
West (£470) but lower than England (£512).

The average weekly wage for a resident in Halton is lower than the North
West (£473) and England (£513).

Halton has a higher proportion of businesses who turnover £1million plus
when compared to England and the North West.

Halton’s employment rate is similar to regional and national rates.

Halton has a lower proportion of residents in professional occupations when
compared regionally and nationally. However the borough does have a
higher proportion of residents working in associate professional and
technical occupations.

Skills

This theme focusses on Adult skills and learning, Higher education and
Apprenticeships

Key LEA findings:-

Similar to the City Region, Halton resident’s qualification levels are lower
than those of the North West and England.

The 2011 skills for life survey showed that Halton has improved in each of
the categories (Literacy, Numeracy and ICT Skills) when compared to the
2003 Skills for Life survey. In comparison to local, regional and national
averages, Halton has outperformed all in terms of improvement.



4.0

5.0

Page 18

= Nationally, Halton has amongst the lowest proportions of pupils entering
Higher Education.

= Halton had 2,000 apprenticeship starts in 2011/12. Around half of these
end in achievements.

Economic Inactivity and Unemployment

This theme covers all elements of worklessness, including; economic inactivity,
out-of-work benefit claimant levels and Job Seekers Allowance claimant levels.

Key LEA findings:-

= 18,900 (24%) of Halton’s working age population are economically inactive.

= 17% of Halton’s working age population are claiming out of work benefits.

* In line with the City Region rate, Halton’s JSA rate is around 5%. This is
higher than the national rate.

= At 11%, Halton’s youth (18-24 year olds) unemployment rate is above
regional (8%) and national (6%) rates.

Land and Property markets

This section seeks to quantify the demand for, and the supply of, commercial
property (development land and industrial, office and retail space) in Halton
from 2000 to 2011.

Key LEA findings:-

= The number of enquiries for commercial property received by Halton
Borough Council’s Business Improvement and Growth (BIG) Team fell
between 2008-09 and 2009-10 mirroring the global economic slowdown.

= Significantly, since 2008-09, there has been a decrease in inward
investment enquiries but a marked increase in local businesses requiring
commercial property to satisfy their expansion plans together with new
start-up companies seeking commercial property.

= The supply of commercial property in Halton has increased dramatically
since 2008. For example, there is now three times the amount of 1000-
5000 sq. ft. industrial space recorded on the BIG Team database compared
with 2008.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The evidence regarding the current and anticipated performance of the local
economy contained within the final draft of the Halton LEA will be utilised to
shape the development of future Council policy.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

8.0

9.0

Page 19

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES
Children and Young People in Halton

Continuous improvement in terms of the educational attainment of the
Boroughs young people will impact profoundly upon the future performance of
the local economy

Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton

The availability of a flexible, skilled and motivated workforce will be vital to the
future performance of the economy of Halton

A Healthy Halton

Worklessness is a key determinant of poor health. Measures, therefore, to
improve the employability of local people will have a positive impact upon the
health of the Borough

A Safer Halton

Worklessness is a factor in many instances of crime and anti-social behaviour.
Measures to increase employment, be they through a general upskilling of the
local workforce or improved levels of entrepreneurship, will reduce instances of
criminal or deviant behaviour.

Environment and Regeneration in Halton

The provision of an adequate supply of high quality development land which
can be brought forward within the framework of the Council’s Core Strategy
and specific development priorities will impact positively on the urban renewal
of the Borough.

RISK ANALYSIS

The provision of comprehensive, evidence based LEA will provide the
necessary intelligence to identify and address the key challenges facing the
Borough of Halton. The production of a Halton LEA will, therefore, mitigate a
number of the risks associated with developing policy and allocating resources.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
None

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer

None under the meaning of the Act.




Page 20

Local Economic Assessment 2013 _\L\\_

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Produced by Halton Borough Council




Page 21

1: Context and place

To make Halton a better place for its
residents, employers and
employees, a strong emphasis on
economic prosperity is required. For
Halton ‘place-making’ extends
beyond the development of capital
schemes in isolation but leads us to
an approach which connects our
capital assets to Halton’s
communities, so that local people
benefit from these opportunities.

If we are to drive future economic
growth and prosperity in the borough

Map of Halton

effectively, it will require the
alignment of activities,
development of new approaches
and vehicles to regeneration and
pooling resources accordingly.

The current economic climate
requires the delivery of services
in a different way; they need to
become more focused; and there
is a need to develop new ways of
working, particularly with the
private sector.

The Halton Economic
Assessment will comprise a
robust evidence base about the
Halton economy and a clear
functional analysis of economic
activity across the borough. This
will then feed into the
development of a local strategy
and a rigorous assessment of key
policy issues, trends and future
scenarios.

]
- e .
e e ™

BOROUGH COUNCIL

@ Crown copyright and database rights
2013 Ordnance Survey 100018552
Produced by Customer Intelligence Unit, HBC

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)



Page 22

What other information is out there?

The following “spine” chart provides contextual information for Halton. Information is constantly updated and can
be accessed at www.halton.gov.uk/research

How does Halton WSt metmge okt
compare with other e
places in England? valg
Domain Indicator Halton 533 Ir:;: En%\:i':; (out I;ng: I:galraau':rg)?ities) E:gtland
g 1 Population Grow th 2001-11 6.4% 7.9% -4.0% 29.6%
:E 2 0-14 age group 18.6% 17.7% 8.1% O 24.6%
§_ 3 15-64 age group 66.7% 66.0% 56.0% 78.4%
8 4 65+ age group 14.6% 16.3% 6.1% [ ) 29.6%
5 Jobs in public admin, education & health 31.2% 29.8% 15.1% ® 46.0%
6 Average w eekly earnings (£) £432 £508 £370 [} £1,002
> 7  Unenmployment (JSA claimants) 5.7% 3.8% 8.2% [ ) 0.3%
E 8  Youth unemploy ment (JSA claimants aged 18-24) 12.6% 7.3% 16.0% () 0.0%
8 9 Worklessness (claiming out-of-w ork benefits) 19.0% 12.1% 23.0% (] 3.0%
= 10 No qualifications 11.5% 10.4% 20.9% () 2.3%
11 Qualified to NVQ3 and above 42.5% 52.4% 29.7% (] 76.3%
12 GCSE attainment 56.3% 58.9% 40.8% [ ) 74.7%
g’ 13 House prices (£000) 134 232 91 [ ] 570
'g 14 Long-termvacant dw elings (%) 1.4% 1.3% 47% @ 0.0%
i 15 Earnings to house price ratio 4.4 6.7 274 O 34
= 16 Happiness Index 7.4 7.4 7l [ ] 7.9
’? o 17 Proportion of Children in Poverty 28.0% 21.9% 50.9% [ ] 6.4%
g = 18 Deprivation (IMD score) 825 19.2 43.4 [ ] 4.5
] 19 Crime (per 1,000 residents) 42.8 38.0 151.8 Q 13.0
20 Life expectancy - females (years) 79.6 82.6 791 (] 89.8
21 Life expectancy - males (years) 755 78.6 73.6 O 8511
g 22 Obese Children (Year 6) 23.8% 19.0% 26.5% (] 9.8%
§ 23 Alcohol-specific hospital stays (Under 18) 153.9 61.8 1549 @ 12.5
24 Admission episodes for alcohol-attributable conditions 2833.7 1895.2 32758 [ ) 909.9
25 Early deaths by cancer 159.1 110.1 159.1 @ 77.9

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)



Page 23

2: Economic Value and Growth by sector

GVA and the City Region Context Growth Sectors 1. 3MG
2. Mersey Gateway
Gross value added (GVA) is a The Liverpool City Region has a 3. Daresbury
measure in economics of the value number of growth sectors that will 4. The Heath
of goods and services produced in have an impact on Halton. The
an area, industry or sector of an identified sectors are: Current Halton picture of
economy. The Liverpool City Region growth sectors
has a e Creative and Digital
Industries The chart below shows the
e Advanced Manufacturing number of jobs in growth sectors,
'E, 2 3 . 1 b n economy e Finance and Professional the largest proportion being those
Services classed as forming part of the
The 2012 Merseyside Partnership * Life Sciences knowledge economy.
Economic Review estimated that in ° L?W Carbon 35,000
2009 Halton provides * Visitor Economy g
_E 2 3 b n ' Within the City region context the 'm
. of the Liverpool following sites within Halton have :20"

City Region's GVA (around 10%). been identified as being key:

Comparative GVA 0
Knowledge Superport Visitor Low Carbon
Economy Economy Economy
(excluding

Area GVA 2011
(Em)

retail)

4 ASRTH
w

The future picture
The 2012 Merseyside Partnership Economic Review provided the following economic forecasts:
Baseline Growth Sector Employment in Liverpool City Region

2009 2000- 2005 2010- 2015- 2020-

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 Growth
(000s] [% pal (% pal (% pal (% pal (% pal expected in
Low Carbon The 12 35 0% 4% U5 life sciences,
Knowledge i.e. Daresbury

Advanced Manufacturing 351 43 84 -03 -08B -04
Digital & Creative 259 20 -56 13 03 04
Life Sciences Sk 1 1% =t# a7 o9
Professional & Financial 704 31 -19 10 09 09
Tourism & Visitor 500 43 -0.6 0.3 B4 D7
SuperPort 308 28 03 06 02 04
Total LCR Economy 6458 13 -08 04 05 05

Mote: Waorkplace based employment.
Source: LEFM Baseline consistent with Cambridge Econometrics” UK Regional Economic Forecast, July 2011,

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)



Page 24

Baseline Growth Sector GVA in Liverpool City Region

2009 2000- 2005- 2010- 2015- 2020-
2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 GVA forecast

(Em 2008)* (% pal (% pal (% pal (% pal (% pal to increase in
215 o7 &E B s Digital &
Creative, i.e.
16739 28 D3 43 A A Heath/
10710 28 03 47 47 50 Daresbury
7634 4& 105 29 51 a7y
Professional & Financial 28428 21 1.7 28 30 36
Tourism & Visitor 7685 25 19 14 22 24
SuperPort gins A% 44 38 23 98

Total LCR Economy 20,265.5 . 0.4 1.6 25 25

Source: LEFM Baseline consistent with Cambridge Econometrics” UK Regional Economic Forecast, July 2011,
* Figures guoted in Emillons based on 2006 prices.

For more detail see the 2012 Mersey Partnership Economic Review:
http://www.liverpoollep.org/docs/Economic_Report_2012.pdf

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)



Workforce in Halton

60 ,OOO people work

in Halton

Halton has a higher proportion of
people working in full-time jobs when
compared regionally and nationally

Status of workforce in Halton

Area % full- % part-
time time

Halton’s workforce is similar when
compared nationally and regionally.
Halton does have a lower level of
Managers and a higher level of
Machine operatives.

Workforce by occupation type

Page 25

3: Employment and Economic Activity

Businesses in Halton

3 ,500 businesses

(local units) in Halton

Business type

Wages

The average weekly wage for a
worker in Halton is higher than
the North West (£470) but lower
than England (£512).

E 4 9 3 average

weekly wage for workers
in Halton

The average weekly wage for a
resident in Halton is lower than

the North West (£473) and
England (£513).

'E 4 5 2 average

weekly wage for residents
in Halton

Halton

LCR

NW

England

" Elementary occupations

m Process, Plant and Machine

Operatives
m Sales and Customer Service

Occupations
W Caring, Leisure and Other

Service Occupations
m Skilled Trades Occupations

B Administrative and Secretarial

Occupations
W Associate Prof & Tech

Occupations
m Professional Occupations

W Managers, Directors and Senior
Officials

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)

m0-49
W 500 - 999

England

Halton has a higher proportion of
businesses who turnover
£1million plus when compared to
England and the North West

Turnover size (£ thousand)

m50-99 m 100 - 249 m 250 - 499

™ 1,000 - 4,999 m 5,000 +

T I = I

North West Halton UA



Page 26

Resident Analysis Travel to work

Halton’s employment rate is similar

to regional and national rates 3 1 900 of Halton's
’

Employment rate (% working age)

workforce live in Halton.

[Area | All | Male | Female |

Halton’s largest import and export
of workers is to Warrington.

Cheshire

Liverpool Westand

Chester

o 8,000 3,600
6 /o of Halton's working <
4,600 2200 200
age residents are self 1,500
4,800
employed

1600
All other 2,600
This is lower than the LCR (7%), e ~—, Halton ﬂ
North West (8%) and England (10%) ‘ el
' (31,900 of Halton’s 1 200
workforce live in Halton)
2,300 300

1 900

Halton has a lower proportion of

residents in professional occupations Trafford

when compared regionally and 1,200

nationally. However the borough 1,300 ChEe::tlre
does have a higher proportion of 1,000

residents working in associate
professional and technical
occupations.

Occupation type of Halton Residents

elementary occupations

m process, plant and machine
operatives

i sales and customer service
occupations

m caring, leisure and other
service occupations

m skilled trades occupations

M administrative and secretarial
occupations

W associate prof & tech
occupations

W professional occupations

M managers, directors and senior
Halton NW  England officials

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)



m % with no qualifications
m % with NVQ2+
% with NVQ4+

Page 27

4: Skills

Adult Skills and learning

Similar to the City Region, Halton
resident’s qualification levels are
lower than those of the North West
and England.

12 o/o of Halton's working

age population have no
qualifications.
% with NVQ1+

W % with NVQ3+
" % with Trade Apprenticeships

W % with other qualifications

100

Ak

Halton North West England

The 2011 skills for life survey
showed that Halton has improved in
each of the categories (Literacy,
Numeracy and ICT Skills) when
compared to the 2003 Skills for Life
survey. In comparison to local,
regional and national averages,
Halton has outperformed all in terms
of improvement.

Higher Education

Nationally, Halton has amongst
the lowest proportions of pupils
entering Higher Education.

% of pupils aged 15 in 2005/06
entering Higher Education before

they are 19

40

35 England
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

Knowsley Halton Liverpool St.Helens Wirral Sefton --

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)

Apprenticeships

Halton had 2,000 apprenticeship
starts in 2011/12. Around half of
these end in achievements.

The highest number of
apprenticeships was in the
Business, Administration and Law
sectors, although Engineering
and Manufacturing Technology
apprenticeships offer a more
successful completion rate.

| Area | Starts | Ends |




Page 28

Science Technology and Manufacturing (STAM) analysis

In 2012 Halton Borough Council carried out an analysis of STAM companies within the borough. Overall, Level 6
qualifications are the most required for the current employment types offered by Halton STAM companies, with
fewer opportunities for those with lower qualifications, especially in the Bioscience and Engineering sectors.

Current recruitment opportunities are available for those qualified to at least Level 3. Future recruitment
opportunities seem to require a wider range of qualification levels from Level 3-8 (though most opportunities are

again at Level 6).

Apprenticeships appear to be well represented, with opportunities tending to be towards the Advanced and Higher
Level Apprenticeships (leading to Level 3 and 4 qualifications). Companies in the Bioscience sector offered the

fewest number of apprenticeships.

The table below summarises these comments:

Employment Types

L6+
Chemical L2+ (most at L6)
Digital L2+ (most at L6)
Engineering L5 and 6

Recruitment
Opportunities

Current L3-5, Future —
most at L6

Current none, Future —
most at L6

Current L3-4, Future —
most at L3, 4, 6

Current L5-8, Future — L3,
5-8 (L5-6 most)

Apprenticeship
Opportunities

Few - Advanced
Many — Advanced/
Higher/Undergraduate

Some — All levels

Many — advanced / higher

For further information the report can be found here: http://sciencehalton.co.uk/Halton-STAM-Skills-Report-

2012.pdf

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)




Page 29

5: Economic Inactivity and Unemployment

Economic Inactivity The out of work benefit with the o
largest number of claimants is 2 9 /O of JSA
1 O O ESA/incapacity benefits. The
8 ,9 (24%) of chart at the bottom of the page claimants have been
shows the out of work claimant laimi 12
Halton's working age rate at ward level. Windmill Hill claiming for over
. . has the highest proportion, with a months
opulation are economicall
P P ) m Y third of the working age
inactive population claiming a key out of At 11%, Halton’s youth (18-24
' work benefit. year olds) unemployment rate is
12,300 (65%) of the economically above regional (8%) and national
inactive do not want a job. Job Seekers Allowance (6%) rates.
1 in 3 of the female working age In line with the City Region rate,

population are economically inactive. ~ Halton’s JSA rate is around 5%.
This is higher than the national

Out of Work Benefits rate.
6.0
17% o s vorin
© of Halton's working
age population are claiming 30
out of work benefits 20
1.0
0.0

LCR Halton England North West

Out of work benefits (ward level)

40 -

35 4

30 4

25 9

20

Halton
15
10
5
0
N > R & Q N N e e D 2 Q& ' 2 Q N s R N
Q\Q}° @\o° og\e 8“0 é?o o.{<~° $°6 Gﬁo"" SR é\(,}b N & Gz“” @q@ @z«:v $o(" g QQ"“’\ <\\\\\
w & & F P 2 40 & X O $ <« & & & S
< < N & X X S & & &
S X SR
&



Page 30

6: Land and Property markets

This section seeks to quantify the
demand for, and the supply of,
commercial property (development
land and industrial, office and retail
space) in Halton from 2000 to 2011.

The analysis is based upon
information held by (and collected
by) Halton Borough Council’s
Business Improvement and Growth
(BIG) Team, itis, therefore, based
upon an incomplete picture of both
the total number of investment
projects completed in the Borough
each year and the supply of
commercial property and should be
read accordingly.

The Demand for Commercial
Property 2000-2011

The number of enquiries for
commercial property received by the
BIG Team fell between 2008-09 and
2009-10 mirroring the global
economic slowdown. The largest fall
in Investment enquiries was 38%,
occurring between 2007-08 and
2008-09. However, in 2010-11,
investment enquires increased for
the first time since 2007-08.

Total enquiries - % change

00-01 02-03 04-05 06-07 08-09 10-11 12-13

Following the global recession,
enquiries for industrial and office
units have started to increase in
2010-11, while retail and site

enquiries appeared to recover in
2009-10 but then fell again in
2011-12. Preliminary figures for
2012-13 show industrial enquiries
still increasing, an increase in
retail, but a slowing of enquiries
for offices and sites.

Over the period of the review
there has been no change with
respect to the split of overall
enquiries between Runcorn and
Widnes.

Since 2007-08 there has been a
decrease in enquiries for freehold
properties together with an
increase in ‘no preference’ of
lease type.

Significantly, since 2008-09, there
has been a decrease in inward
investment enquiries but a
marked increase in local
businesses requiring commercial
property to satisfy their expansion
plans together with new start-up
companies seeking commercial
property.

The Supply of Commercial
Property 2000-2011

The supply of commercial
property in Halton has increased
dramatically since 2008. For
example, there is now three times
the amount of 1000-5000 sq ft
industrial space recorded on the
BIG Team database compared
with 2008.

However, there have been a
number of notable exceptions to
the general trend of increasing

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)

property supply. For example the
supply of small industrial
premises, large sites (20 acres +)
have decreased over the last
year, while large retail units and
offices have remained largely the
same.

Industrial availability (units)

0

g & B &
|

= H &

<1000 g1 >1.000f2 an <SO002 35000812 ane <10,000 A2 =10p0 2

Retail availability (units)

BB aBB8B

=2008
—— 2010
o 2011
2012

o3 8BS

<5002 >E0#2and <1 000F2 21,000 K2 5nd 5000 12 >5000 2

Office availability (units)

80

0

80

B8 f

®
i I ]
" L i l ]
o .

2 > 10001 <5.0001 50002

Site availability (units)

B |



] .
ISR [t all happening IN HALTON

" -‘! T :"“’!_‘!‘_‘_'5- :

g il s 4
—




Local Economic Assessment

Scope of the Report

Economic Value and Growth by sector
*Employment and Economic Activity
*SKills

*Economic Inactivity and Unemployment
Land and Property markets

2¢ abed



Local Economic Assessment

Context and place
Tio o Lo 5 D wiatnly § w reare T Toa biatan F oiraime
P siperass F xuwtet Autrypms w compene 3
e B R (4 BOrer o Ry WA oy S B 2 P
Ll as o R 1L~ ) e e N S B Hales ity 40§ S
Rt pliceah iy iy Feiserneh sttty Srelirll ayah of eirea
) P depwwrr et ety b B irinagh T
e o Sokaton bt T & L hatead T e 0
e - e Bderep o iy Bigrany o 3 ksl TGy
EABAH AU 15 HIRS .5 Bl iy Woby el B 53 3 R SRAATE O
ik, W T G e D uire focutedl i Fare iy et d TR W A
Pt Y e G 8.1 Sowd b eviop S mp T

g stodaty w e

e o v o prue ek
e ard o e bormgh
rpp—

WWWWWWWWWWWW
et o et
e desaeet
el v
s

: | s e
e e s s
el

Context and Place

*Introduces the
geographical setting of
Halton

|ldentifies the demographic
make-up of the Borough

Briefly summarises the
wider determinants and
challenges faced within
Halton

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

c¢ abed



Local Economic Assessment

[]
2 Ecoromic vt by scr Economic Value and
GWVA and the City Region Context Growth Sectors 1. IMG
Gross value added (GVA}iza The Liverpool City Regicn has a g g:rr::h\!'ﬁ:m.!y G rOWt h

measure in economics of the valus number of growth sectors that will 4. The Heath
of goods and senvices produced n have an impact on Halton. The
an area. industry or sector of an identified sectors are: Cumrent Halton picture of
economy. The Liverpool City Region growth sectors
hasia «  Creative and Digital .
oo *Gross value added (GVA) is a
mber of jobs in growth sectors.

s Advanced Manufaciuring nu
£ 2 3 i 1b n economy «  Finance and Professional the largest proportion being those

The 2012 Merssyside Partnership - D Sarees . :E:f“;mm?dme m e aS U I'e | n eCO n O m |CS Of th e

Economic Review estmated that in b L‘_“f Caron
2009 Halton provides = Visitor Economy

£2.3bNuwttos S memmine = value of goods and services

following sites within Halton have
been identified as being key:

_ It produced in an area, industry or

Comparative GWA

i 42 2 - sector of an economy

. Halton provides an estimated

e — 10% of the Liverpool City Regions
| ' GVA (£2.3billion)

e e e *Growth is projected in life
sciences sector (i.e. Daresbur

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIL)

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

¢ abed



Local Economic Assessment

Employment and Economic

Workforce in Halton Wages Businesses in Halton

GO0 scpine conansy 3H00messs Activity

the Morth West (E470) but lower
in Halton than England {E512). (local units) in Halton

mn e | *This theme focusses on the
e = workforce, wage levels and
R rnamsiomoon S :
— e = business demography
Haltor's workforce is simaar when £'452 average ? ! . .
B et e sty | - *People working in Halton have a
Machine operatives. m .
= higher average wage than people
— living in Halton

businesses who turnover

St *Halton has a higher proportion
S of businesses who turnover
£1million+ when compared to the
NW and England

per,
= Sales
Oy
= Cari
Serwice O
5kl Trade:
m Agmi
ey
 Assac
 Managers, Di
Halton  LCR g

Managers,
L land  Officials

Produced by the Customer Intelligence Unit (CIU)

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Gg abed



Local Economic Assessment

Adult Skills and learning Higher Education
Similar to the City Region, Halton Mationalfy, Halton has amomgst
resident’s qualification levels are the lowest proportions of pupds
lower than those of the Morth Waest entering Higher Education.

and England.

12/o.;|1|

T
I. j. L h

The 2011 skills for life

showed that Halton h:rs fnproved in
each of the categonies (Literacy.
Mumeracy and ICT Skills) when
compared fo the 2003 Skils for Life
survey. |n comparisen to local,
regional and national averages.
Halton has cutperformed all in terms
of improvement.

PPPPPPPP the Customes Intelligence Unit (CILU)

Apprenticeships

Halton had 2,000 apprenticeship
starts in 2011/12. Around half of
these end in achisvernents.

The highest number of
apprenticeships was in the
Business. Administration and Law
sectors, although Engineering
and Manufacturing Technology
apprenticeships offer a more
successful completion rate

[Area | Stars | Ends |

Horicuhure and =~ 20 0
Animal Car

%

Commusication 110

310

Skills

*This theme focusses on Adult
skills and learning, Higher
education and Apprenticeships

Similarly to the Liverpool City
region, adult qualification levels in
Halton are lower than the North
West and England

*Halton’s figures for literacy,
numeracy and ICT skills are all
improving

*Skills for life survey 2011

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

9¢ abed



Local Economic Assessment

5: Economic Inactivity and Unemployment

Economic Inactivity

18,900 (2as) of

Halton's working age
population are economically
inactive

12,300 {85%) of the economically

inactive do not want a job.

1 in 3 of the female working age

population are economically inactive.

Out of Work Benefits

17% ot -
o of Halton's working
age population are claiming
out of work benefits

The out of work benefit with the
largest number of cdlaimants is
ESAfincapacity benefits. The
chart at the bottom of the page
shows the out of work claimant
rate at ward level. Windmill Hill
has the highest propartion, with a
thind of the working age
population claiming a key out of
work benefit.

Job Seekers Allowance
In line with the City Region rate,

Halton's JSA rate is around 5%.
This is higher than the national

rate.

“ I
: I I I
w

o Haten bt e

Ovut of work benefits (ward lewed)

29% of JSA

claimants have been
claiming for over 12
manths

At 11%, Halton's youth {18-24
year olds) unemployment rate is

above regional (%) and national
(8% rates.

Economic Activity and
Unemployment

*This theme covers all elements of
worklessness, including; economic
inactivity, out-of-work benefit claimant
levels and Job Seekers Allowance
claimant levels

*Around a quarter of Halton’s working age
population are economically inactive (with
65% of this group not wanting a job)

«In line with the Liverpool City Region,
Halton’s unemployment claimant rate is
higher than regional and national rates

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

/€ abed



Local Economic Assessment

6: Land and Property markets

This section seeks to quantify the
demand for, and the supply of,
commercial property (development
land and industrial, office and retail
space) in Halton from 2000 to 2011

The analysis is based upon
information held by (and collected
by} Halton Borough Council's
Business Improvement and Growth
(BIG) Team, it is, therefore, based
upon an incomplete picture of both
the total number of investment
projects completed in the Borough
each year and the supply of
commercial property and should be
read accordingly.

The Demand for Commercial
Property 2000-2011

The number of enguiries for
commercial property received by the
BIG Tearn fell between 2008-02 and
2009-10 mirroring the global
economic slowdown. The largest fall
in Investment enquines was 38%,
occuming between 2007-D8 and
2008-02. Howewer, in 2010-11,
investment enquires increasad for
the first ime since 2007-0B.

Total enquiriec - % ehange

enquiries appeared to recoverin
2008-10 but then fell again in
2011-12. Prelminary figures for
2012-13 show industrial enquiries
still increasing, an increase in
retad, but 3 slowing of enguines
for offices and sites.

Cver the period of the review
there has been no change with
respect to the split of overall
enquiries between Runcom and
Widnes.

Since 2007-08 there has beena
decrease in enquiries for freehold
properties together with an
increase in ‘no preference’ of
lease type.

Significantly, since 2003-08, there
has been a decrease in inward
imvestment enquiries but a
marked increase in local
businesses requiring commencial
property to satisfy their expansion
plans together with new start-up
companies seeking commercial
property.

The Supply of Commercial
Property 2000-2041

. The supply of commercial
-=  property in Halton has increased
_» dramatically since 2008. For

¥ example, there is now three times

«  the amount of 1000-5000 sq ft

- indusirial space recorded on the
-=  BIG Team database compared
* with 2008.

Following the global recession,
enquiries for industrial and office
units have started to increase in
2010-11, while retail and site

However, there have been a
number of notable exceptions to
the general trend of increasing

Producad by the Customer Intelligance Unit (CIU)

property supply. For example the
supply of small industrial
premises, |arge sites (20 acres +)
have decreased over the last
year, while large retail units and
offices have remamed largely the
same.

Land and Property markets

*This section seeks to quantify the demand for,
and the supply of, commercial property
(development land and industrial, office and
retail space) in Halton from 2000 to 2011

*No. of enquiries for commercial property
received by Halton Borough Council’s Business
Improvement and Growth (BIG) Team fell
between 2008-09 and 2009-10 mirroring the
global economic slowdown

Significantly, since 2008-09, there has been a
decrease in inward investment enquiries but a
marked increase in local businesses requiring
commercial property

*The supply of commercial property in Halton
has increased dramatically since 2008

ho
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

g¢ abed



Page 39 Agenda Item 6b

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community PPB

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Children & Enterprise

PORTFOLIO: Economic Development

SUBJECT: Outcomes of 2011 Skills for Life Survey and improvements in
Halton

WARDS: All

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

e To provide Members with details of the outcomes of the recently published 2011 Skills
for Life Survey

e To inform members on the progress made since the 2003 survey results published in
2005.

RECOMMENDATION: That

The report is noted

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Skills for Life 2011 Survey was commissioned by the Department of Business,
Innovation and Skills.
The last Skills for Life Survey was conducted in 2003 and the results were published in 2005.

The survey was designed to measure basic skills amongst people aged between 16 and 65
(inclusive) in England.

The aim of the Skills for Life survey was to provide an evidence base upon which the
government could judge what progress had been made on Literacy and Numeracy amongst
adults of working age in England since 2003. The survey also provided robust evidence of
the standard of ICT skills in the population.

Data is available for the Local Authority and modelled estimates are available at ward level.
All learning providers, including the Adult Learning and Skills Development Team, delivering

Skills for Life provision in Halton may have contributed to the improvement in Literacy,
Numeracy and ICT levels.



Page 40

3.6 Table 1 represents the Qualifications framework— levels and examples of equivalent
qualifications

Table 1
Level Examples of equivalent qualifications | Age
Level 2 GCSE Grade A*-C 13-15
Level 1 GCSE Grade D -G 11-13
Entry 3 KS2 - Primary 9-11
Entry 2 KS1 - Primary 7-9
Entry 1 Foundation — KS1 - Primary 5-7

4.0 LOCAL IMPROVEMENT

4.1 Skills for Life levels in Halton have improved in Literacy, Numeracy and ICT when
compared to the 2003 Skills for Life Survey. In comparison to local, regional and national
averages, Halton has outperformed all in terms of improvement.

4.2 Literacy
4.2.1  The number of respondents reaching Literacy Level 2 in Halton has improved by
17% since 2003.

422 Tables 2 to 5 represent the 2011 Literacy Levels and percentage improvement
since Skills for Life Survey 2003 at Halton, Greater Merseyside, North West and
England levels.

Table 2: Halton

Literacy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 32% 49% 17%

Level 1 45% 31% -14%

Entry 1-3 23% 19% -4%
Table 3: Greater Merseyside

Literacy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 37% 50% 13%

Level 1 48% 31% -17%

Entry 1-3 15% 19% 4%
Table 4: North West

Literacy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 41% 54% 13%

Level 1 42% 30% -12%

Entry 1-3 18% 15% -3%
Table 5: England

Literacy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 44% 54% 10%

Level 1 40% 30% -10%

Entry 1-3 16% 16% 0%




423

424

4.2.5

Page 41

Halton’s percentages in 2011 are similar to the North West and National picture
as detailed in Table 6.

Table 6
Literacy Level Halton North West England
Level 2 and above 49% 54% 54%
Level 1 31% 31% 30%
Entry Level 3 10% 9% 9%
Entry Level 2 3% 2% 2%
Entry Level 1 and below 6% 4% 5%

Table 7 represents 2011 Literacy levels compared to 2003 levels in Halton’s
Wards
The wards showing the most significant progress (decrease of below Level 2
Literacy skills) from 2003 to 2011 are:
e Hough Green 15.1%, Appleton 14.5%, Halton View 14.4%, Ditton 13.9%,
Mersey 13.9% and Halton Brook 13.3%
Table 7:
LITERACY 2011 2003 Progress
from 2003
to 2011
Council Ward EL1 EL2 EL3 L1 L2 Below Below Below
and and Level 2 Level 2 Level 2
below above skills skills skills
Appleton 7.0% | 3.1% | 10.8% | 32.6% | 46.5% 53.5% 68% 14.5%
Beechwood 42% | 2.0% | 7.8% | 29.3% | 56.6% 43.4% 93% 9.6%
Birchfield 3.2% | 1.6% | 6.3% | 26.6% | 62.4% 37.6% 42% 4.4%
Broadheath 7.7% | 3.4% | 11.6% | 33.4% | 43.9% 56.1% 66% 9.9%
Halton Castle | 10.6% | 4.4% | 14.2% | 34.6% | 36.2% 63.8% 73% 9.2%
Daresbury 3.4% | 1.7% | 6.6% | 27.0% | 61.4% 38.6% 42% 3.4%
Ditton 6.4% | 2.8% | 10.1% | 31.8% | 48.9% 51.1% 65% 13.9%
Farnworth 45% | 21% | 8.0% | 29.3% | 56.0% 44.0% 93% 9.0%
Grange 8.3% | 3.6% | 12.0% | 33.1% | 43.1% 56.9% 68% 1.1%
Hale 4.9% |23% | 86% |30.3% | 53.9% 46.1% S7% 10.9%
Halton Brook 7.0% | 3.1% | 10.6% | 32.1% | 47.3% 52.7% 66% 13.3%
Halton Lea 9.0% | 3.8% | 12.7% | 33.8% | 40.6% 59.4% 69% 9.6%
Halton View 53% | 25% | 9.0% |30.9% | 52.4% 47.6% 62% 14.4%
Heath 50% | 2.4% | 8.7% | 30.5% | 53.4% 46.6% 98% 11.4%
Hough Green | 6.4% | 2.8% | 9.9% | 30.8% | 50.1% 49.9% 65% 15.1%
Kingsway 7.0% | 31% | 10.6% | 32.2% | 47.1% 52.9% 65% 12.1%
Mersey 6.0% | 2.7% | 9.8% |31.7% | 49.9% 50.1% 64% 13.9%
Norton North 54% | 2.4% | 8.8% | 29.6% | 53.8% 46.2% 99% 12.8%
Norton South | 8.1% | 3.5% | 11.8% | 33.0% | 43.7% 56.3% 68% 11.7%
Riverside 7.0% | 3.1% | 10.9% | 32.7% | 46.3% 53.7% 65% 11.3%
Windmill Hill 11.0% | 4.6% | 14.6% | 34.8% | 35.1% 64.9% 77% 12.1%




Page 42

4.3 Numeracy
4.3.1 The number of respondents reaching Numeracy Level 2 in Halton has improved by
8% since 2003.

4.3.2 The number of respondents reaching Numeracy Level 1 in Halton has improved by
7% since 2003.

4.3.3 At both regional and national level, the number of respondents reaching Numeracy
Level 2 has fallen since 2003, whilst Halton and Greater Merseyside region have
improved significantly over the same period.

4.3.4 Table 8 to 11 represent the 2011 Numeracy levels and percentage improvement since
Skills for Life Survey 2013 at Halton, Greater Merseyside, North West and England
levels.

Table 8: Halton

Numeracy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 11% 19% 8%

Level 1 20% 27% 7%

Entry 1-3 69% 54% -15%
Table 9: Greater Merseyside

Numeracy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 13% 21% 8%

Level 1 26% 27% 1%

Entry 1-3 61% 52% -9%
Table 10: North West

Numeracy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 23% 17% -6%

Level 1 28% 28% 0%

Entry 1-3 49% 54% 5%
Table 11: England

Numeracy Level 2003 2011 % Improvement

Level 2 25% 23% -2%

Level 1 28% 28% 0%

Entry 1-3 46% 49% 3%

4.3.5 Table 12 shows that Halton has a higher percentage of Level 2 and above
Numeracy than the North West

Table 12
Numeracy Level Halton North West England
Level 2 and above 19% 17% 23%
Level 1 27% 28% 28%
Entry Level 3 27% 29% 26%
Entry Level 2 19% 18% 17%
Entry Level 1 and below 8% 8% 7%

4.3.6 Table 13 represents 2011 Numeracy levels compared to 2033 levels in Halton’s
Wards



Page 43

4.3.7 The wards showing the most significant decrease of below Level 2 Numeracy skills
from 2003 to 2011 are:
e Riverside 10%, Norton South 8.7%, Hough Green 8.6%, Appleton 8.1%,
Mersey 7.8%, Windmill Hill 7.3% and Halton Lea 7.1%

Table 13:
2011 2003 Progress
from 2003

NUMERACY to 2011
Council Ward EL1 | EL2 | EL3 L1 [ L2and Below Below Below

and above Level 2 Level 2 Level 2

below skills skills skills

Appleton 8.7% | 20.2% | 27.8% | 26.1% | 17.1% 82.9% 91% 8.1%
Beechwood 5.5% | 15.1% | 25.8% | 29.9% | 23.7% 76.3% 7% 0.7%
Birchfield 41% | 12.2% | 23.8% | 31.7% | 28.3% 71.7% 67% -4.7%
Broadheath 9.3% | 21.3% | 28.4% | 25.3% | 15.7% 84.3% 89% 4.7%
Halton Castle 121% | 24.7% | 28.3% | 22.2% | 12.6% 87.4% 89% 1.6%
Daresbury 4.3% | 12.6% | 23.9% | 31.4% | 27.8% 72.2% 67% 5.2%
Ditton 7.9% | 19.1% | 27.4% | 27.0% | 18.6% 81.4% 87% 2.6%
Farnworth 5.7% | 15.1% | 25.5% | 29.9% | 23.9% 76.1% 77% 0.9%
Grange 9.8% | 21.9% | 28.1% | 24.8% | 15.4% 84.6% 89% 4.4%
Hale 6.6% | 16.9% | 26.6% | 28.6% | 21.2% 78.8% 80% 1.2%
Halton Brook 8.6% | 20.1% | 27.7% | 26.3% | 17.3% 82.7% 87% 4.3%
Halton Lea 10.5% | 22.9% | 28.5% | 24.0% | 14.1% 85.9% 93% 71%
Halton View 6.8% | 17.5% | 27.0% | 28.4% | 20.3% 79.7% 85% 5.3%
Heath 6.5% | 16.8% | 26.6% | 28.7% | 21.4% 78.6% 80% 1.4%
Hough Green 7.5% | 17.9% | 26.4% | 27.6% | 20.6% 79.4% 88% 8.6%
Kingsway 8.4% | 19.7% | 27.5% | 26.5% | 17.9% 82.1% 88% 5.9%
Mersey 7.6% | 18.8% | 27.5% | 27.3% | 18.8% 81.2% 89% 7.8%
Norton North 6.5% | 16.5% | 25.8% | 28.7% | 22.4% 77.6% 84% 6.4%
Norton South 9.5% | 21.5% | 28.1% | 25.1% | 15.7% 84.3% 93% 8.7%
Riverside 8.8% | 20.4% | 27.9% | 26.0% | 17.0% 83.0% 93% 10.0%
Windmill Hill 12.5% | 25.2% | 28.3% | 21.7% | 12.3% 87.7% 95% 7.3%




5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.4.1

Page 44

2011 Skills for Life Survey Outcomes

The improvement in Literacy and Numeracy levels for people aged between 16 and 65 in
Halton is very positive.

Significant improvement in Literacy and Numeracy levels has been made since 2003.

The borough-wide Skills for Life Assessment Service enables adults aged 19+ living and/or
working in Halton to access Literacy and Numeracy assessment to establish the current level
and provides information, advice and guidance which leads to individuals progressing to the
most appropriate provision in the borough. Additionally, tutors and learners are able to
quickly progress to a more detailed, diagnostic assessment and develop individual learning
plans at the start of the programme. This service is delivered by Halton Borough Council’s
Employment, Learning and Skills Division.

The outcomes of the 2011 Skills for Life survey evidence that more local people have the
literacy, language and numeracy skills to make the most of all the opportunities available to
them.

The achievement of Skills for Life qualifications has contributed to significant progress
since 2003, leading to a decrease in the number of adults with no qualifications.

Through the achievement of English and mathematics qualifications, parents and family
members are better able to support children’s learning, resulting in increased attainment
levels

Local people are now better placed to provide an effective and efficient service to
employers, including Halton Borough Council.

Next Steps

The development of Literacy and Numeracy skills and the progression and achievement
of the level will remain a priority in Halton

Skills for Life provision is a regular agenda item at the Halton Strategic Partnership Board
(HSPB) Skills Group meetings. The outcomes of the 2011 Skills for Life Survey were
discussed at the September 2013 meeting.

Learning providers in Halton will share information and best practice to ensure provision
continues to meet the needs of local people.

The Council’'s Adult Learning and Skills Development team will implement an appropriate
curriculum design to meet the needs of adults.

The Council’s Adult Learning and Skills Development team has started to implement
a ‘mixed delivery model’ from September 2013 to ensure an appropriate curriculum
design is offered for adults. The mixed delivery model will include:
e sessions will increase to 2.5 hours in the main learning centres and will
remain 2 hours in Children’s Centres in line with créche requirements

6



Page 45

¢ individuals will attend two taught sessions per week in the main learning
centres

¢ intensive English and maths programmes will be available (4 days per week
for 4 weeks)

¢ Blended Learning provision will be introduced from September 2013 (taught
sessions, distance learning and tutorials)

6.4.2 The Council’s Skills for Life and Employability team will better monitor learner
attendance and have a stronger focus on improving quality through existing quality
processes to improve retention and success rates for a small number of learners on
English and mathematics courses.

6.4.3 English and mathematics courses will be evaluated by the council’s Skills for Life and
Employability team on a termly basis and improvements identified leading to timely
implementation.

6.5 The Employment, Learning and Skills Division will continue to offer an integrated
Information, Advice, Guidance and Assessment service to help, guide and support adults
in Halton to access the most appropriate learning provision or employment.

6.6 The Council’s Skills for Life and Employability team will maximise the Simplified Funding
model introduced by the Skills Funding Agency from 1% August 2013. The new funding
model will result in an increased amount of funding for each full Functional Skills learning
aim in the 2013/14 academic year. This will allow the delivery of the required increase in
learning hours to achieve full qualifications.

7.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Whilst significant improvement has been made since 2003, Literacy levels in Halton remain
lower than in the North West and in England and, although Numeracy levels are higher than
the North West, they remain lower than in England. The development of Literacy and
Numeracy levels and the progression and achievement of the next level must remain a

priority in Halton.

8.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The introduction of Functional Skills qualifications for adults in September 2012 has resulted
in learning programmes that require an increased number of hours in learning and, as a
result, a greater commitment is required if individuals are to succeed in improving their

English and maths skills.

8.2 Awarding Bodies have responded to the need for short qualifications in English and
mathematics and accredited units have been approved by Ofqual within the Qualifications
Credit Framework (QCF). As a result the unit qualifications are funded by the Skills Funding
Agency. The achievement of units will lead to adults being able to achieve Functional Skills
Awards and credits towards a full Functional Skills qualification. However, a similar time
commitment is required to achieve a full Functional Skills qualification, but it is hoped that
unit accreditation will maintain motivation and commitment and lead to the achievement of

the full qualification.



Page 46

9.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

9.1  Children and Young People in Halton
Through the achievement of qualifications in Functional Skills in English and mathematics,
parents and family members will be better able to support children’s learning resulting in
increased attainment levels.

9.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton
The achievement of Skills for Life qualifications has contributed to a decrease in the
number of adults with no qualifications and the improvement in Skills for Life levels in
Halton since 2003 evidences this decrease.

The outcomes of the 2011 Skills for Life survey evidences that more local people have the
literacy, language and numeracy skills to make the most of all the opportunities available to
them.

9.3 A Healthy Halton
None

9.4 A Safer Halton
None

9.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal
None

10.0 RISK ANALYSIS

10.1  The introduction of Functional Skills qualifications for adults has resulted in learning
programmes that require an increased number of hours of learning and a greater
commitment for individuals.

11.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
None

12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

None



Page 47 Agenda ltem 6¢

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community Policy &
Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER:  Strategic Director — Children and Enterprise.

PORTFOLIO: Economic Development
SUBJECT: Children and Enterprise Quarterly Policy Update
WARDS: All

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To inform the Board of recent national policy announcements relevant to
employment, learning and skKills.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:
2.1  That the report is noted.
3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 A number of policy, legislation, consultation and guidance documents, are issued by
government departments and agencies that have varying degrees of relevance to
issues on the employment, learning and skills agenda and related topics.

3.2 A brief summary of key announcements is provided in this report along with
observations of local relevance, where appropriate, so the Board can consider
whether to initiate more detailed scrutiny and/or report to a future meeting.

4.0 NEW POLICY, STRATEGY AND STATUTORY GUIDANCE

Cutting red tape for business improvement districts that help small shops and local
traders

The Department for Communities and Local Government ended the red tape which made it
harder for local firms and traders to set up business improvement districts where high streets
stretch across council boundaries.

The changes, which come into force on 7 October 2013 mean that business improvement
districts will no longer need separate ballots in each authority where a business improvement
district crosses with another local authorities’ boundaries is proposed. Instead there will be a
single ballot for the entire area.

Business improvement districts are a tried and tested approach, used in towns and cities
across the world, to fund improvements in local trading areas and the new regulations. The
potential for business improvement districts to successfully support town centres growth was
outlined by Mary Portas in her review of High Streets.

1



Page 48

The government is committed to support this model as a catalyst for high street regeneration
and will detail how new business improvement district areas can get help with their start up
costs through the £500,000 loan fund scheme later this year.

There are currently over 150 business improvement districts across the UK working on
issues such as town centre safety, improvement of public realm, support for local traders and
parking initiatives.

COMMENT: Halton currently has two Business Improvement Districts which work well,
indeed both have recently voted to continue for another five years. The changes to
legislation whilst not having a direct impact on the BIDS in Halton, are to be welcomed
as should there be a cross boundary BID in the future, only a single ballot would be
required.

Ofsted Single Inspection Framework

Ofsted has published its single framework for inspecting local authority services for
vulnerable children, examining early help, child protection, looked after children and care
leavers and fostering and adoption services.

The inspection is universal and will be conducted in a three-year cycle from November 2013.
Selection of local authorities will not target ‘inadequate’ authorities. There will be a balance of
authorities from the outset, including those previously found to be ‘good’. If a local authority
is judged to be ‘inadequate’ for overall effectiveness it will be subject to a full inspection
within 12-18 months unless otherwise directed by the Secretary of State for Education.

A summary of the Framework and link to the full document are attached below.

=
Ofsted Single
Inspection Framewor!

COMMENT: This will be the biggest single inspection of the local authority’s children’s
services since 2011 and the Ofsted’s framework is more wide-ranging and challenging
than anything that has gone before. Halton will have its own particular and unique
challenges within this through the intention to concurrently inspect areas with a
shared Director of Children’s Services. Planning and preparations have been ongoing
since 2012 for this inspection however to ensure Halton is ready, including the
undertaking of a review of practice in July 2013.

Free school lunch for every child in state-funded infant school and disadvantaged
students in further education

Every child in reception, year 1 and year 2 in state-funded schools will receive a free school
lunch from September 2014, Deputy Prime Minister Nick Clegg has announced. The
government will fund schools in England to provide every child in reception, year 1 and year
2 with a hot, nutritious meal at lunch time. The aim is to improve academic attainment and
save families money — over the course of a year the average family spends £437 on school
lunches per child.

COMMENT: Regular, nutritious meals are crucial in supporting the healthy
development of children. This initiative can help to promote positive eating habits and
links to education, helping to ensure that all children are able to concentrate and
perform well in the classroom. From a financial perspective, it could also provide

2



Page 49

some relief to those families with young children who have been hit hard by the
economic downturn. It will be important to ensure this does not negatively impact on
spending to support children and families in other areas however.

Changes to early entry at GCSE
From 29 September 2013, only a student’s first entry to a GCSE examination will count in
their school’s performance tables.

COMMENT: This measure will at once remove the trend in some areas to bank C
grades and higher at the earliest possible time. This can remove the level of stress for
pupils by speading examinations over a wider period but also has been seen as a way
to help boost league table performance. The change could have significant
implications for any Halton students partway through their GCSE studies who might
have expected early entry to any GCSE examinations.

5.0 RESEARCH, CONSULTATIONS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

The vanishing high street: the Grimsey Review

The last three years have seen various strands of work, by Government, local authorities and
civil society to draw together policies and measures to help preserve and rejuvenate high
streets and town centres, notably activity stemming from Mary Portas' Government-
commissioned review in 2011. In September 2013, former Wickes and Iceland Chief
Executive Bill Grimsey released a rival review put together by an expert team and explicitly
set up as an alternative to Portas' work, which Grimsey criticised.

As well as providing a concise account of the backdrop of changing consumer trends,
Grimsey attributes the continuing decline of the high street to a lack of clear targets and
success measures in initiatives such as the Portas Pilots; the need for a strong, coherent
plan and management approach to address town centre issues holistically and channel the
enthusiasm of small business and civil society; and a failure on the part of Government to
address the financial challenges facing small businesses in particular in a substantive way.
His alternative sets out some overall principles:

o Overall, high streets must embrace a mixed-use vision involving housing, public
services, work spaces and social and cultural provision — there will be less retail and
what remains must be integrated far better with internet-driven technology

« There are areas where government action is essential, such as on reforming business
rates

« Local authorities should lead on establishing town centre commissions to devise long-
term, holistic business plans for their town centres, driven by accurate local and
national intelligence and linking to planning policy, investment strategy, transport,
digital offer and marketing.

COMMENT: Each high street is different, but many are struggling and must adapt to
survive, and councils, businesses and communities must work together to deliver
that. Internet shopping, supermarkets and out of town retail, have had a significant
impact on our town centres and their impact is unlikely to diminish. Whilst they do
have an important role to play in offering consumers choice and competition, retailers
need to embrace the change if they are to survive.



Page 50

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority

On 30" Sept the Liverpool City Region submitted its Governance Review to Government.,
which recommends that we create a Combined Authority for the Liverpool City Region,
including Halton.

A combined authority will not see the creation of a ‘super council’ but would enable strategic
decisions to be made around economic development, regeneration, housing and transport.
The submission also shows Government how it would ensure ‘clear and transparent’
leadership, deliver economies of scale and streamline decision-making processes. The
proposals were subject to extensive consultation with Members, businesses, partners and
the public, and were supported by LCR Cabinet and Council in each of the six City Region
boroughs and the Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority. The feedback has been
overwhelmingly positive, with over 80% of respondents supporting the proposals.

Government will now consider the proposal and will carry out a further consultation exercise
in the Autumn. If there is support for the proposal, an order will be laid before Parliament to
create the Combined Authority from April 2014.

COMMENT: The Combined Authority if accepted by Government will ONLY deal with
strategic economic development, transport, housing and employment and skills. The
conclusion of the Governance Review is that a Combined Authority is the best model
to support economic growth and secure more jobs, in Halton and across the LCR. The
Combined Authority will help us signal to businesses and Government that we are
serious about working together. It is expected that it will also be able to attract
devolved powers and funding from Government. The proposals were subject to
extensive consultation with Members, businesses, partners and the public, and were
supported by LCR Cabinet and Council in each of the six City Region boroughs and
the Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority. The feedback has been
overwhelmingly positive, with over 80% of respondents supporting the proposals.

Locally Led Delivery Projects for Raising the Participation Age

The DfE has published research into phase four of the locally led delivery projects (LLDP) for
Raising the Participation Age (RPA). Informed by the findings of a series of trials and projects
led by local councils, the report makes recommendations which will be of use to local
authorities in helping them implement effectively and efficiently this ambitious legislative
driven change. The recommendations relate to partnership working and collaboration, data
and tracking, early intervention, support for vulnerable groups and retaining 17 year olds in
learning and training.

COMMENT: Work on RPA in Halton is well established, including a 14-19
Commissioning Statement developed in partnership with the 11-19 Strategic
Partnership of Schools, the College and training providers and aims to secure
sufficient suitable education and training provision. The Data Management Group
works to ensure there is robust data on young people’s activity available and
strategies in place to engage those who are not participating or those whose activity is
not known. A Halton Participation Strategy has been developed to address the
statutory duties in relation to RPA and ongoing work will be informed by the learning
from the delivery projects within this research.

Government proposes 'SME friendly' public sector procurement market

4



Page 51

The Government has outlined plans to further standardise public sector procurement in a bid
to support smaller businesses. The consultation outlines plans to create a small and medium
sized enterprise (SME) ‘single market’ for public procurement, simplifying and standardising
how contracts are advertised, bid for and paid across the sector.

Proposals include a requirement for all public sector contracts over £10,000 to be accessible
on the same site and a banning of pre-qualification questionnaires for low value public sector
contracts.

COMMENT: Supporting local businesses and encouraging business growth are key
priorities for the council. Should these proposals lead to more local businesses
winning local contracts then they should be welcomed.

Government announces independent reviewer for benefit sanctions

The Government has appointed a member of the Social Security Advisory Committee to
undertake an independent review of benefit sanctions. Matthew Oakley, who is also head of
economics and social policy at think tank Policy Exchange, will examine the clarity of
information provided to Jobseeker’s Allowance claimants. Stipulated in the Jobseeker’s
(Back to Work Schemes) Act 2013, the review will consider — where a sanction has been
given - the quality of information given to claimants about their sanction, options they have
going forward and the explanation given of the review and appeals process.

COMMENT: Benefit sanctions result in people having their money stopped for a period
of time for not following the rules of the benefit they are getting, such as going to an
interview or medical examination. People accessing Jobseekers’ Allowance,
Incapacity Benefit or Employment Support Allowance, and in the future Universal
Credit are expected to take certain steps towards employment and failing to do so can
result in benefits being stopped. Benefit sanctions have significant impacts on
individuals and families so there is a need to ensure claimants fully understand the
requirements upon them whilst claiming these benefits, the penalties and how the
sanctions can be reversed.

Workers see pay packets drop by £30 a week since 2007
Workers in the UK have lost more than £30 a week in their pay packets since 2007 according
to new research.

TUC has compared hourly pay rates in 2007 with those in 2012 as part of its Britain Needs a
Pay Rise campaign. It found that the North West is the hardest hit region in the UK, with
hourly pay falling by 8% in real terms. Darlington was hit the hardest, with workers seeing a
16.2% fall in real terms, which equates to a £75.94 cut in weekly pay packets. The analysis
also shows that men in the UK have seen their wages drop more in real terms, with an
average fall of 7.4%. Female employees saw their wages decline by 4.7% in real terms.

COMMENT: The north west has seen its pay packets hardest hit and this has a
significant impact not only on the ability of families, particularly those on low incomes,
to makes ends meet, but it also results in less spend in the local economy impacting
on businesses.

Ofsted Survey Going in the right direction? Evaluation of careers guidance in schools
from September 2012



Page 52

Since September 2012, schools have been legally responsible for securing access to
independent and impartial careers guidance for all their students in Years 9 to 11. For this
survey, Ofsted inspectors visited 60 secondary schools and academies between December
2012 and March 2013 to evaluate how well this new duty is being carried out. This report
gives their findings and recommendations to Government.

COMMENT: Career advice and guidance is a key step in preparing young people for
work, so it is essential that schools offer a quality service that informs the choices
young people make whilst at school.

16-19 Accountability, DfE Consultation

The DfE is consulting (until 20 November) on proposed changes to the accountability
arrangements for providers of 16-19 education and training in England, including
performance tables and minimum standards for provision both at level 2 (for the first time for
16-19 providers) and at level 3. The changes are intended to help parents, students and
inspectors to understand the quality of provision through a combination of (i) top line data
giving a snapshot of a provider’s overall performance and (ii) additional data on specific
areas of the provider’s performance (eg. particular types of course or particular students).
The data — which will be published — will enable parents and students to identify the best
provision for their needs and help providers to improve their performance; the data will be
used by the DfE to set minimum standards, and by Ofsted in inspection.

COMMENT: A response to the consultation will be submitted by Halton in conjunction
with the 11-19 Learning Partnership.

Industrial strategy: government and industry in partnership

On 1 August 2013, the Government published its strategy for offshore wind, the last of eleven
industrial sector strategies. In addition to offshore wind, the strategies cover nuclear power,
UK oil and gas, construction, the agri-tech industries, aerospace, the automotive industries,
life sciences, information economy, professional and business services, and further and
higher education.

In its guidance for Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) on Growth Deals, the Government
indicated that LEPSs’ strategic plans should have regard to national policy on growth, including
its industrial strategy. The sector strategies could contain important signals for LEP priorities
and strategic plans. Some of the sectors have a specific spatial focus whilst some might
entail strategies for supply chains spread across the country.

These publications support the government’s industrial strategy. They explore areas where
government action can have a real and early impact, including:

developing strategic partnerships with industry

supporting emerging technologies

improving access to finance for businesses

working with business to help develop skills that businesses will need
publishing government contracts to provide confidence to business investment

COMMENT: National growth policy is taken into consideration at both the Liverpool
City Region (LEP) and local level. The new combined authority, should it be approved



Page 53

will have a key role in driving forward strategic economic development and
employment and skills across the sub-region.

SEN Reforms

A consultation with more detail on plans to overhaul the special educational needs (SEN)
system has been published. Alongside draft regulations, the government has issued a
revised, clearer 0 to 25 SEN Code of Practice which provides practical advice for
professionals and families on how to support children and young people with SEN. The new
code reflects the changes being introduced by the Children and Families Bill, such as the
introduction of personal budgets and reformed arrangements for 16- to 25-year-olds in further
education and training.

In addition, the government is also consulting on the timetable for transition to the new
system, which will be phased in from September 2014. We want all children and young
people with SEN and their families to benefit from the improved arrangements as soon as
possible, while at the same time ensuring that the best possible service is maintained during
the transition.

COMMENT: Work is underway across in conjunction with partners across Halton
Children’s Trust to ensure Halton is ready by September 2014. A Lead Project Officer
has been appointed and multi-agency implementation group is being established and
will begin meeting shortly. All relevant partners across the Trust have committed their
support to the process.

Tax-Free Childcare — HMT consultation and implications for Universal Credit

The Treasury have published Tax-Free Childcare: consultation on design and operation
which will be phased in from autumn 2015 replacing over time the existing system of
Employer Supported Childcare. The consultation also covers details of the planned increase
in childcare support within Universal Credit, available from April 2016, as childcare support
moves from tax credits into Universal Credit. Consultation closes on 14 October 2013.

The new Tax Free Childcare scheme will support working families with 20% of their childcare
costs up to a limit of £1,200 per child each year. In the first year, all children under 5 will be
eligible, with the child age limit eventually including all children under 12. It will only be
available to families where both parents work, or for a single parent who works. Earnings
must be less than £150,000 for each parent per year. The scheme will, for the first time, be
available to the self-employed. It will not be available to families that receive support through
tax credits or Universal Credit (which will be introduced in the next two years to replace tax
credits), as instead parents can get up to 70% of childcare costs paid by the government.
From April 2016 this will increase to 85% but only for households where all parents pay
income tax.

COMMENT: This is a consultation document which is part of the Government’s
commitment to providing access to affordable childcare.

Daniel Pelka Serious Case Review, Coventry LSCB
The overview report of the Serious Case Review of the events leading to the death of four

year old Daniel Pelka, published by Coventry Safeguarding Children Board, highlights the
opportunities missed by a number of agencies to protect him.

7



Page 54

COMMENT: This SCR report identifies a number of opportunities where professionals
from a number of local agencies could have done more to protect Daniel. Like with all
SCRs the publication of the report will be used to ensure any learning is taken on by
partners within Halton. The case led to some calls nationally to implement a system of
mandatory reporting of professionals’ concerns of abuse and/or neglect to help to
protect more children but overall there is little evidence that professionals do not
current report their concerns to local authority children’s social care.

Child Poverty — CPAG and NCB reports

The Child Poverty Action Group (CPAG) report The Cost of a Child in 2013 (CPAG) shows
that the cost of bringing up a child is increasing much faster than incomes, especially for
those living in poverty, and that the number of children in poverty is also rising. Local
Authorities and Child Poverty: balancing Threats and Opportunities considers the potential
impact of these changes on local authorities who have a duty to mitigate the effects of child
poverty. The National Children’s Bureau (NCB) report Greater Expectations warns that
unless policy takes a different direction there is a real risk of the UK ‘sleepwalking into a
world where inequality and disadvantage are so deeply entrenched that our children grow up
in a state of social apartheid’.

COMMENT: Addressing child and family poverty is a key priority for the council and
whilst we are making some progress, we recognise that there remains much to do. The
council is currently revising its’ Child and Family Poverty strategy and will continue to
support children, young people and families to help ensure that that a disadvantaged
start in life does not limit their life chances.

Contact Us:

For more information please contact the Halton Children & Enterprise Policy Team through
any of the options below:

Mark Grady — Principal Policy Officer, mark.grady@halton.gov.uk, Tel: 0151 511 7396

Debbie Houghton — Principal Policy Officer, debbie.houghton@halton.gov.uk, Tel: 0151 511 8231
Kelly Collier — Policy Officer, kelly.collier@halton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 511 8299

Tracy Ryan — Policy Assistant, tracy.ryan@halton.gov.uk, Tel: 0151 511 8661

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

6.1  The varied range of issues covered in this report potentially present a number of
challenges and opportunities across a number of the Council’s current priorities.
Where appropriate a more detailed analysis of the information and relevance to the
council will take place.

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS

7.1 There are no immediate risks directly relating to the information in the report.



Page 55

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

8.1 Not applicable.

9.0 FURTHER INFORMATION

9.1 If members would a more detailed analysis of any of the issues mentioned in this
report, or paper copy of any of the documents referred to, the should contact; Debbie
Houghton at Debbie.houghton@halton.gov.uk or 0151 511 8231

10.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS

10.1  None under the meaning of the Act. (For information - Hyperlinks to all of the full
reports are embedded within the headings.)



Ofsted Single Inspection Framework

Ofsted has published its single framework for inspecting local authority services for
vulnerable children, examining early help, child protection, looked after children and
care leavers and fostering and adoption services.

The inspection is universal and will be conducted in a three-year cycle from
November 2013. Selection of local authorities will not target ‘inadequate’ authorities.
There will be a balance of authorities from the outset, including those previously
found to be ‘good’. If a local authority is judged to be ‘inadequate’ for overall
effectiveness it will be subject to a full inspection within 12-18 months unless
otherwise directed by the Secretary of State for Education.

Judgements will be on the expected four-point scale:

e Qutstanding

e Good

¢ Requires improvement
e Inadequate

Two other frameworks have also been published for inspecting voluntary adoption
agencies and independent fostering services. Both take immediate effect.

The ambition is clear — only ‘good’ is now good enough and this reflects the intention
of the draft guidance that was released for consultation in June 2013 that ‘good’ is
now the new minimum.

The protection of children and young people is a key judgement. Services that are
less than ‘good’ will no longer be judged adequate, but to ‘require improvement’ until
they meet the standard that children, young people and their families deserve and
have a right to expect. The key test is the extent to which children’s experiences are
prioritised and the effectiveness of the help, protection and care that they receive.

As expected, inspectors will make three key judgements that cumulatively lead to a
judgement on the overall effectiveness of services and arrangements. These are:

o the experiences and progress of children who need help and protection



Page 57

e the experiences and progress of children looked after and achieving
permanence

¢ leadership, management and governance — the focus of this is on DCS and
Lead Member engagement and an effective HSCB, as well as engagement
with Health & Wellbeing Board and other local partnerships

If a local authority is judged ‘inadequate’ in any of these three critical areas, it will
automatically be judged ‘inadequate’ overall.

In addition, there will be graded judgements on:

e the experiences and progress for care leavers
e adoption.

Inspectors will evaluate the quality of plans for children’s futures, the management
and practice oversight of those plans to make them happen and the extent to which
any delays are being swiftly reduced. They will also consider the quality of support
and care for young people becoming independent and leaving the system, including
the provision of safe and good housing, access to education, training and
employment and the extent to which those individuals feel supported by their
corporate parents.

Once this inspection framework has been launched, Ofsted will be working closely
with partner inspectorates to establish the additional criteria required to evaluate and
judge the contribution of health, police, probation and prison services in the help,
care and protection of children and young people. This work will inform the
development of a joint inspection of child protection and safeguarding arrangements
to be led by Ofsted from 2015. These criteria will be subject to consultation during
2014.

Other Key Points to consider from the Guidance

e Intention is for concurrent inspections in areas where the Director of
Children’s Services holds statutory responsibility for more than one authority —
significant implications for Halton and no indication of this prior to the launch
of the final framework.

e Notification will be received one day before the lead inspector and small team
of inspectors arrive on site to begin inspection.

e Rest of inspection team will be on site at the beginning of the week following
local authority case auditing of files.

¢ Inspection Team — normally 7 inspectors, 6 will be experienced in Social
Care, 1 in Education. The Team will be on site for about 11 working days.



Page 58

Where there are perceived weaknesses in multi-agency practice the relevant
inspectorates will be notified and may decide to inspect in accordance with
their statutory powers.

The scope of the inspection is children and young people who are:
o atrisk of harm.
o in need of protection and provided with a multi-agency child protection
plan.
o no longer needing a child protection plan but still require some help
and support.
o in need of Children’s Social Care support but below the significant
harm and looked after thresholds
o missing from education or offered alternative provision
o looked after
o care leavers
The guidance notes 3 key judgements and 3 graded judgements within
paragraph 20 as per the consultation guidance. There is only detail on two
graded judgement areas however, there is no detail on a graded judgement
on the effectiveness of LSCB as expected, this is referred to only in the
Leadership, Management and Governance section.

Appendices

The full Inspection Guidance is attached below, which also details the scope
of Annex A

>

Framework and
evaluation schedule f

The frameworks and grade descriptors for the inspections of voluntary
adoption agencies and independent adoption agencies are attached below

= =

Adoption inspections Fostering inspections
of voluntary adoptior of independent foste|

Mark Grady 25.9.13



Page 59 Agenda ltem 7a

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community

DATE:

Policy and Performance Board
11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Children and Enterprise

PORTFOLIO: Economic Development

SUBJECT: Draft Welfare Reform Scrutiny Review
Report and Recommendations

WARD(S) Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

2.0

3.0

3.1

To present the Board with the draft Scrutiny Review of the Welfare
Reform Topic Group Report and recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION: That:

i) the Board approve the draft Welfare Reform scrutiny
review report and recommendations.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

This report (attached as Appendix 1) was commissioned by the
Employment, Learning, Skills and Community Policy and
Performance Board. A scrutiny review working group was
established with five Members from the Board, Operational Director,
Principal Policy Officer and Partnership Officer.

The report was commissioned as the Welfare Reform Act 2012
represents the biggest change to the welfare system since its
conception 60 years ago. Given that a key pillar of the Government’s
reform is a focus on “making work pay”, it was felt that there were a
number of issues that required further exploration within and ELS
and C. context.

The scrutiny review was conducted through a number of means
between June 2013 and September 2013, as follows:

¢ Monthly meetings of the scrutiny review topic group;

e Presentations by various key members of staff from the
Council and partners (detail of the presentations can be found
in Annex 2);

e Provision of information;



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 60

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Existing policies are endorsed by the report.

OTHER/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The recommendations highlighted within the Action Plan will require
resources to undertake, mainly from operational teams.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Children & Young People in Halton

The welfare reforms will continue to impact upon children, young
people and families in the borough due to potential new charges to
families such as the bedroom tax, contribution to council tax costs,
possible loss in income etc

Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton

The Welfare Reforms will result in an overall loss of money to
residents and therefore will result in less money in the local
economy. Also people who may not have worked for many years
due to ill health etc will now potentially be required to seek work.
This will be a real challenge particularly for HPIJ. As the welfare
reforms require applications to be made online, then there may also
be a need for more access to IT and improvements in residents’ IT
skills .

A Healthy Halton

Elements of the Welfare Reform Scrutiny Review impact on this
priority, for example, people being taken off disability benefits and
required to seek work opportunities. Also changes to the benefits
system is likely to cause stress for some vulnerable groups, for
example those with mental health problems, which may impact upon
their health and well being.

A Safer Halton

Due to reductions in household income and the potential impact on
vulnerable groups, such as those with substance misuse issues,
there could be a corresponding rise in crime, in particular domestic
abuse.

Halton’s Environment and Urban Renewal

The welfare reforms will result in less money in the economy which
may impact upon existing and new development. On the positive
side Halton has a good supply of local labour skills to support
economic growth and regeneration.



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

Page 61

RISK ANALYSIS

The report and recommendations support the Council’s strategic
priority of Employment, Learning, Skills and Community. The
welfare reforms present a number of risks to children and families in
the borough, due to families being likely to have less money and
increasing demands on that income

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

The implementation of the recommendations will help to mitigate
against the impacts of the welfare reforms on the residents of
Halton.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer

None




o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Welfare Reform
Scrufiny Review

DRAFT
Report
Ocfober 2013



Page 63

CONTENTS

Contents Page Paragraph
Purpose of the report 3 1.0
Structure of the report 3 2.0
Introduction 4 3.0
Methodology 5 4.0
Evidence (summary of evidence gathered) and Analysis with 5 5.0
findings and conclusions

Overall Conclusion 19 6.0
Annexes Number
Topic brief 1
Methodology 2
Documents Considered including National Best Practice 3

within the review

Action Plan 4

2|Page



Page 64

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Welfare Reform Act received Royal Assent in March 2012. It introduces a
number of new measures which the ELS and C PPB Scrutiny Topic Group is
considering. The purpose of the report, as outlined in the initial topic brief (at
Annex 1) is to give consideration to the following questions:

e What are we doing/have done to address these issues both as a
Council and with partners for our residents?

e Is there any information/documentation that has been produced or
which needs to be produced to advise our staff/customers/residents on
the changes?

e How can we best collaborate with partners in order to mitigate any
potential negative impact of the Welfare Reform Act in Halton?

e Are there any changes needed in how we deliver our services. Do we
anticipate an increase/change in demand for the services provided?

The Topic Group has focused on the impact of Welfare Reform from an ELS
perspective. However, as the report explains, there has been a cross-
referencing with other themes given the complexity and interrelationship with
other service areas.

To respond to these questions Members identified key lines of enquiry which
might inform the review as follows:

Gathering a Partner View and Expert Opinion from Colleagues.

Mapping out what support can and will be provided.

A Literature Review which summarises what the legislation says.

Identify opportunities for service development

Identification of problems and potential solutions.

An assessment of which partners are doing what.

What information do we need to set a baseline and how do we

measure/establish the impact?

8. Targeting of resources. How we do this.

9. Impact on debt and debt recovery.

10. Universal credit — budgeting and support and the identification of
training needs.

11.An assessment on the Impact on the wider economy e.g. retail sector.

12.National Pilot schemes and whether any early experience could inform

the Topic Group discussions.

NOoO O~ W~

3|Page



Page 65

2.0 STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT

This report is structured with an introduction, a brief summary of the
methodology followed by evidence, analysis with findings/conclusions and
recommendations. The annexes include the topic brief, methodology detail
and an action plan to capture the recommendations from the scrutiny review.

3.0 INTRODUCTION

3.1 Reason the scrutiny review was commissioned

A presentation to the borough’s Local Strategic Partnership Board in March
2013 explained that measures introduced in the Welfare Reform Act 2012
represent the biggest changes to the welfare system since its conception 60
years ago. Given that a key pillar of the Government’s reform is a focus on
“making work pay”, it was felt that there were a number of issues that required
further exploration within and ELS and C. context.

The Welfare Reform Act introduces a number of new measures which the
ELS and C PPB considered in more detail, in particular:-

Identify what are the problems and impacts facing pilot areas?

o There is a need to assess the rules and changes brought in now and
those that the Act will impose with a later timetable. .

o Act is quite broad; impact of how we cope from both Member and
Officer perspective.

o Use of the Topic Group to set KPIs to evaluate impact.

o Consider impact on Registered Social Landlords.

o Assess and map out systems already in place.

o Map out Training facilities — what is available?

o The impact on access to services.

. Possible use of Schools.

. Need to factor in bedroom tax and partner input.

o glsfo Housing Strategy and whether this reflects changes in Welfare
eform

4|Page



Page 66

The Topic Group will be a useful forum for developing a coordinated response
to how best to deal with the issues arising out of the changes to the Benefits
System.

3.2 Policy and Performance Boards

This report was commissioned as a scrutiny working group for the
Employment, Learning, Skills and Community Policy and Performance Board.

3.3 Membership of the Scrutiny Working Group

Membership of the Scrutiny Working Group included:

Members Officers
Cllir Sue Edge — Chair Wesley Rourke — Operational Director for
Clir Carol Plumpton Walsh Economy, Enterprise and Property
ClIr Peter Lloyd Jones Debbie Houghton — Principal Policy Officer
ClIr Lauren Cassidy Shelah Semoff — Partnership Officer
Clir Geoff Zygadllo
Cllr Norman Plumpton Walsh

4.0 Methodology Summary
This scrutiny review was conducted through a number of means:

e Monthly meetings of the scrutiny review topic group;

e Presentations by various key members of staff and partners (detalil
of the presentations can be found in Annex 2);

e Provision of information.

5.0 Evidence (summary of evidence gathered) and Analysis with
findings/conclusions

5.1 Potential Impact of Welfare Reform and the impacts on the
Employment, Learning & Skills Priority

Wesley Rourke presented to the group a table with the impact of the welfare
changes in Halton. This included changes to working tax credits, housing
benefit, child tax credits, income support and council tax benefit amongst
others. This report was produced by Knowsley Council as part of their work on
child and family poverty. Report attached in Annex 3.

Wesley Rourke also presented a discussion paper to the Topic Group (Report
provided by Lisa Driscoll, Principal Policy Officer), which looks at how some of
the effects of the 2012 Welfare Reform Act may potentially affect the aims and

5|Page



Page 67

objectives of the Employment, Learning and Skills Priority on a practical level.
As many of the wider issues of Welfare Reform such as Personal
Independence Payments and changes to Council Tax Benefit fall potentially
within the remit of other priorities, it focused in more detail at some of the
issues sitting directly under this priority such as those relating to the
forthcoming introduction Universal Credit, and the overall financial impact of
the Benefit Changes, regionally and locally.

The report identified potential impacts of the Welfare Reforms for each of the
ELS and C objectives, as set out below.

e To develop a strong, diverse, competitive and sustainable local
economy.

e To foster a culture of enterprise and entrepreneurship and make Halton
an ideal place to start and grow a business.

e To develop a culture where learning is valued and skill levels
throughout the adult population and across the local workforce can be
raised.

e To promote and increase the employability of local people and remove
barriers to employment to get more people into work.

e To maximise an individual's potential to increase and manage their
income, including access to appropriate, supportive advice services.

The Full report is attached in Annex 3
5.1.1 Conclusion

In terms of absolute loss attributable to Welfare Reform by total population,
including factors such as the 1% cap in annual increases in most working age
benefits, research indicates that the welfare reforms will mean a loss of
revenue to Halton of £51 million per annum. Overall, the North West is the
worst affected region with an average loss of £560 per head of working age
population, a total loss of £2,560 million per annum.

The three regions of northern England (North East, North West, and
Yorkshire) are all hit substantially harder, per working age adult, than the
South and East of England. Beyond Blackpool and Westminster, more than
two-thirds of the 50 local authority districts worst affected by the reforms could
be described as ‘older industrial areas.’” In these older industrial areas the
incapacity benefit reforms, in particular, hit very hard indeed. The reforms to
Disability Living Allowance, which often affect the same people, also hit hard
here. Incapacity claimant rates in older industrial Britain are far in excess of
those in more prosperous parts of the country, not least because of the
difficulty that men and women with health problems or disabilities face in
finding work in these difficult local labour markets. More generally, the higher
reliance on benefits and tax credits in older industrial Britain means that the
failure to up-rate with inflation and the reductions to tax credits have a greater
impact here. In total, the three northern English regions lose around £5.2bn a
year. One way of looking at the regional differences is that if the five worst
affected regions (the three northern English regions plus Wales and London)

6|Page



Page 68

experienced the same per capita loss as South East England, total incomes
there would be £2.8bn a year higher.

The impacts of welfare reform are very substantial — an estimated loss of
income of approaching £19bn a year once all the reforms have been fully
implemented, or an average of £470 a year per adult of working age across
the whole of Britain. For some of the individuals affected by the changes the
loss of income is much, much greater. What is also clear, however, is that the
financial losses arising from the reforms will hit some places much harder than
others.

As a general rule, the most deprived local authorities across Britain are hit
hardest. The loss of benefit income, which is often large, will have knock-on
consequences for local spending and thus for local employment, which will in
turn will add a further twist to the downward spiral. A key effect of welfare
reform will therefore be to widen the gaps in prosperity between the best and
worst local economies across the country.

5.1.2 Recommendations:
No direct recommendations from this report

5.2  Overall Financial Impact Assessment - Sheffield Hallam University
Research

Wesley Rourke presented a summary of the findings from the Sheffield
Hallam research into the overall impacts of the welfare reforms. (Sheffield
Hallam Report
http://www.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/sites/shu.ac.uk/files/hitting-poorest-
places-hardest 0.pdf)

The research states that Halton is the 36™ from a total of 379) most affected
local authority in terms of money lost to an area with a loss per working age
adult per annum of £620. This compares to Blackpool at the top of the scale
for losses (£910) and City of London at the bottom (£180). Overall, the North
West is the worst affected region with an average loss of £560 per head of
working age population, a total loss of £2,560 million per annum.

5.2.1 Conclusion

e When the present welfare reforms have come into full effect they will
take nearly £19bn a year out of the economy. This is equivalent to
around £470 a year for every adult of working age in the country.

e The biggest financial losses arise from reforms to incapacity benefits
(£4.3bn a year), changes to Tax Credits (£3.6bn a year) and the 1 per
cent up-rating of most working-age benefits (£3.4bn a year).

e The Housing Benefit reforms result in more modest losses — an
estimated £490m a year arising from the ‘bedroom tax’ for example —
but for the households affected the sums are nevertheless still large.

7|Page



Page 69

e Some households and individuals, notably sickness and disability
claimants, will be hit by several different elements of the reforms.

e The financial impact of the reforms, however, varies greatly across the
country. At the extremes, the worst-hit local authority areas lose around
four times as much, per adult of working age, as the authorities least
affected by the reforms.

e Britain’s older industrial areas, a number of seaside towns and some
London boroughs are hit hardest. Much of the south and east of
England outside London escapes comparatively lightly.

e Blackpool, in North West England, is hit worst of all — an estimated loss
of more than £900 a year for every adult of working age in the town.

e The three regions of northern England alone can expect to lose around
£5.2bn a year in benefit income.

e As a general rule, the more deprived the local authority, the greater the
financial hit.

o A key effect of the welfare reforms will be to widen the gaps in
prosperity between the best and worst local economies across Britain.

5.2.2 Recommendations:

To include economic indicators which highlight footfall and visitor spend in our
town centre into the borough’s Local Economic Assessment

5.3 Welfare Reform Overview

Dave Gray from Welfare Rights Team gave a presentation about Welfare
Reform changes. Bedroom tax and localisation of council tax changes are
already having an impact on residents and demand for help and support has
risen. Universal credit (UC) and Personal Independence Payments (PIP) are
still to happen and Disability Living Allowance (DLA) is underway but at
various stages. Tameside is a very limited pilot, with only a very small group
of people, however it may be useful to get their perspective on the changes
and their experience to date.

David advised that agencies are working together and the Halton Information
and advice Providers Group has facilitatd this work. The Council has been
focusing on benefit appeals and supporting people that have been taken off
benefit that perhaps shouldn’t have been. There has been an increased
demand to help residents fill in forms. Housing Associations are also reporting

8|Page



Page 70

on the impacts of the Reforms. Riverside has reported that 6,190 people
affected regionally by the Bedroom Tax and of those half have not paid
anything and a quarter have paid in full. Arrears actions will be further down
the line. HHT more upbeat so overall mixed views from housing providers.

Also 7,000 people got their first Council Tax bill this year, 3,900 summonses
have already been issued for non- payment People must talk to Council Tax if
they have problems paying due to arrears with benefit payments etc. However
many people are worse off so it is difficult for them to pay.

Reforms will affect some groups such as pensioners that have not been
affected before. We know pensioners are now turning up at food banks.

Low paid employment — changes to Tax Credit have already taken effect.
6000 people on incapacity benefit and long term sick are now having to
qualify for continuing employment support allowance. If they fail to qualify
they are being transferred to job seekers allowance. Families with an
employee working in public sector are more likely to be adversely affected
than those in the private sector. More people in north west are employed in
the public sector, therefore are hardest hit.
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/features/2013/05/what-about-the-workers/

Mental health issues are not always taken into account by ATOS and most
believe they are under instruction to reject claims where possible. Onus is on
individual to gather evidence to support their claim but doctors can charge for
letters between £10 - £120. people with mental health issues including ?

5.3.1 Conclusion

There has been an increased demand to help residents fill in forms arising
from changes to the Welfare System Support appeals.

Welfare reforms will affect many groups, in particular older people and people
with mental health issues will need additional support

Many are now being asked to pay Council Tax when they have never paid this
before.

5.3.2 Recommendations:

o Work with CAB/ other agencies to identify volunteers to
support residents to complete the relevant forms.

e Tameside be invited to the Topic Group to present the
findings from the pilot.

e Raise awareness of support provided by the Council’s Adult
Learning Service which assists residents with basic literacy
and numeracy.

9|Page



Page 71

5.4 A Halton Strategic Partnership perspective — i) Mapping Partners’
support; ii) partner responses to the welfare reform agenda; iii)
joint working opportunities

Shelah Semoff gave an overview of the work of the Halton Strategic
Partnership Board. The Chair of the Halton Strategic Partnership Board
(HSPB) is ClIr Polhill and the Employment Learning and Skills Specialist
Strategic Partnership sits under this Board. There have been 2 HSPB
meetings so far dedicated to the welfare reform agenda, with different
speakers invited, looking at the impact that the welfare reform changes will
have on both service providers and our local communities and how the
Partnership can work better together , avoiding duplication and filling the
gaps.. The HSPB has agreed that there is a need to differentiate between the
levels of support provided to people. So for example will be IT literate, whilst
others will not have these basic skills.

The Partnership has produced a leaflet for front line staff, which highlights the
key welfare reform changes. This then sits alongside work which is ongoing to
identify where support is available locally. This information is available
electronically and easily updated.

Also presentations about the welfare reform changes have been given to
different front line staff and voluntary groups.

Digitalisation was also a key consideration as Government expect services
will be digital by default, which is difficult in an area like Halton. “Go ON” is a
national model initiative which focuses on increasing digital skills and is the
successor to Race Online. There is no current Go ON project operating in
Halton, however the HSPB agreed to support the exploration for implementing
one in Halton and this is currently being taken forward

David Gray stated that approximately 80% of claims for Universal Credit will
be on line. Also Jobs match requires IT literacy skills. Small employers are
having issues providing real time info, which should be used on daily basis to
calculate the hours that people have worked. This will directly link to the
benefits paid.

5.4.1 Conclusion
Two key messages were presented:

People will be hit by more than one of the changes and it is important that
people need to seek that professional help early. Also help is available for
people but there is a need to raise awareness. An action plan has been
agreed with Job Centre Plus about what is required and how this will be
undertaken.

It should also be noted that Wesley Rourke is the nominated strategic lead

officer for the HSPB on this issue and another Partnership event has been
arranged for the 27" November. This event is aimed at front line staff and will

10|Page



Page 72

try to establish a better understanding of exactly what impact the welfare
reforms are having on the communities in Halton , as well as across partner
organisations.

5.4.2 Recommendations:

e To complete a Partnership directory. CAB are doing this
through advice services transition fund

e Adult Learning to work with support to help ensure people
they have the necessary access to IT and the right literacy
skills and budgetary skills;

e To develop a Partnership bid for further advocacy support.

e To support the implementation of the “Go ON” project in
Halton.

5.5 Benefit reform and war veterans

The Topic Group received a presentation from Billy Jones from the Runcorn
Veterans Association (RVA). The RVA was set up in 2011 as a not for profit
organisation, primarily to provide support for younger soldiers. The Group
works with soldiers and their families and provides practical help and
signposting including to welfare advice. Staff are trained to deliver this work.

5.5.1 Conclusion

The presentation provided three helpful case studies to outline how the RVA
works with other agencies to provide a “One Stop” approach to soldiers. It was
noted that soldiers tended to relate better to peers/former soldiers rather than
colleagues from other agencies.

5.5.2 Recommendations:

Agencies should use the RVA as a broker to signpost soldiers and their
families to additional support.

5.6 Policy and Research Low Pay/No pay

It was noted by the Topic Group that the term “worklessness” is high on the
political agenda. Since the election of the current coalition government in
2010, welfare spending on the working-age population has been strongly
targeted in its public spending reductions. Some Political leaders have
justified these reductions, at least in part, by depicting unemployment as a
‘lifestyle choice’. The Prime Minister has stated that some people who are
‘claiming welfare are just not entitled to it’.

11|Page



Page 73

Within this context, the Joseph Rowntree Foundation undertook research
examining the relationship between what is often described as ‘poor work’ and
the ‘low pay, no pay’ cycle. The report found that long-term worklessness is a
relatively unusual experience. Stringent welfare rules have been in place for
some time, which mean that, even if an individual were resolutely work-shy
(and there is absolutely no evidence that many people are), avoiding work in
the long term, or even permanently, would be no easy feat. Greater
recognition needs to be given to low pay, no pay churning if governments are
serious about establishing conditions for working life which allow acceptable
levels of social and economic security. It is often assumed that lowpaid work
or ‘poor work’ is the preserve of younger generations who are on pathways
towards better jobs, but, as our research has shown, this is clearly not the
case for some groups of workers. For some of the poorest and most
disadvantaged workers, ‘poor work’ is where their working life ends as well as
where it starts.

Debbie Houghton gave a brief presentation
(link:http://www.odi.org.uk/sites/odi.org.uk/files/odi-assets/events-
presentations/885.pdf) on the low pay no pay cycle and the myths
surrounding people on benefit. The presentation was from research in the
north east but applies equally to Halton. The presentation used real life case
studies to challenge the myths of:-

‘Work always provides the best route out of poverty’
‘The unemployed don’t want to work’
‘Unemployment is a ‘lifestyle choice’

‘There are families with three and even four generations of
worklessness’

Link to summary of the study which explores experiences of poverty and
the low-pay, no pay cycle amongst people living in deprived
neighbourhoods in Teesside, North East England.
http://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/files/jrf/unemployment-pay-poverty-
summary.pdf and http://www.cpag.org.uk/sites/default/files/CPAG-
Poverty142-low-pay-no-pay.pdf

Despite moving in and out of unemployment and low-paid jobs over years,
people in the study expressed great and enduring commitment to work.
Repeated engagement in jobs failed to provide routes away from poverty,
largely because of few opportunities being available in the local job market.
The insecurity of low-paid and low-quality work was the main reason why
shuttling between benefits and jobs had been interviewees’ predominant
experience of working life.

This cycling in and out of low-paid work extended to middle-aged and not just
younger workers. Thus, these jobs are not necessarily stepping stones to
better employment. Caring for children and other family members limited

12|Page



Page 74

labour market participation, as did health problems. lll-health was sometimes
the result of ‘poor work’ and unemployment. Wider aspects of disadvantage
beyond the labour market led interviewees to lose and leave jobs. Financial
necessity, their desire to work and the lack of better opportunities led people
to take poor quality jobs that trapped them in long-term insecurity and poverty.

Gaining further qualifications did help some people in the search for jobs. A
significant finding, however, is that overall, levels of educational attainment did
not straightforwardly predict improved labour market fortunes. Even the best
qualified — those with university degrees — participated at times in the low-pay,
no-pay jobs cycle. Interviewees reported that the support offered by statutory
and voluntary sector agencies to help people into jobs can be limited, patchy
and sometimes unhelpful. Most agencies were more geared to helping the
longer term unemployed, and catered less for people who moved in and out of
work with shorter periods of unemployment. Commonly, informants felt the
stigma of being unemployed and having to attend the Job Centre. Most
deplored claiming welfare benefits and some avoided it for as long as they
could, using savings or loans to tide them over between jobs

5.6.1 Conclusion

e Many people in work remain poor or close to poverty

e Welfare is never generous, often leaving people in everyday hardship —
and sometimes severe poverty

e For virtually all, unemployment is not ‘a life-style choice’

e Unemployed people want to work, actively seek jobs & repeatedly
engage with jobs - that are low paid, low skilled and insecure (but
socially & economically necessary)

e Even the best qualified — those with university degrees — participated at
times in the low-pay, no-pay jobs cycle. The study reported that the
support offered by statutory and voluntary sector agencies to help
people into jobs can be limited, patchy and sometimes unhelpful. Most
agencies were more geared to helping the longer term unemployed,
and catered less for people who moved in and out of work with shorter
periods of unemployment.

5.6.2 Recommendations:

e Encourage other employers to set up paid Internships, similar to
those run by Halton Borough Council

e Service providers could do more to maximise the skills that
voluntary staff can bring to an organisation. They have now
increased the number of hours that you can do on a voluntary
basis

e Greater need to provide opportunities for residents to develop
budgeting and IT skills, particularly important as new benefits
system will rely on online systems. (Sue Riley (JCP) to take up

13|Page



Page 75

with each LA in the sub region. Will take time so don’t want
payday lenders to benefit from this. Sue must set up a plan that
reflects problems in Halton. )

e Consider organising a credit union join up day for council staff
and also work with other employers in the borough to encourage
their employees to join the Credit Union.

5.7 Halton and national data on low paid and temporary work

Report circulated from Neil McSweeney in the Research Team (copy attached
in Annex 3). National data highlights elementary occupations as having the
largest percentage of low paid jobs nationally. A high percentage of Halton
residents are employed in elementary professions. The two occupational
areas with the lowest pay in the North West, are the most sought occupations
in Halton, which are elementary and sales and customer service occupations.
This has a knock on impact on the local economy.

Possible reflecting the current economic climate the number of longer term
Job Seekers Allowance claimants is increasing. However it is people who
have been out of work for shorter time periods who are more likely to get back
into work. In Halton around 25% of jobs are part — time but this is no different
to regional and national positions.

5.7.1 Conclusion

In summary this shows that the jobs which pay less than a living wage are
elementary or low skilled jobs and it is these very jobs that are highly sought
after in Halton, helping to keep people in a cycle of poverty instead of lifting
them out of poverty.

5.7.2 Recommendations:

e to develop appropriate indicators to measure the impact of the
benefit reforms in Halton

5.8 Disability and employment/ unemployment - A Halton Perspective

Debbie Houghton presented an overview of the statistics (attached in Annex
3) and there was a discussion around the usefulness of this data in setting a
baseline to monitor the impact of the welfare reforms over time. Disability
Living Allowance claimants (Nov-12) are higher in Halton than in both the NW
and England. Highest numbers of claimants live in Halton Lea, Windmill Hill
and Halton Castle.

Disability Living Allowance is made up of two components around care and
mobility and differing levels depending on need. Under the welfare reforms,

14|Page



Page 76

this benefit will be removed and replaced only for people of working age.
However these changes are incremental over time, rather than due to take
place on a set date like the ‘Bedroom Tax.” Due to the timescales for the
change, the impact will not have been felt yet, although many affected by
other benefit changes will also be affected by this but at a later date.

Disability Living Allowance (DLA) claimants - new claimants will get Personal
Independence Payment (PIP) not DLA, however existing claimants of working
age are not being re-assessed until 2015 at the earliest. Current claimants
can however refer themselves as self-selectors, to be re-assessed before this
time and anyone currently on DLA whose claim is up for renewal will also be
re-assessed starting October this year. Those on indefinite awards will not be
assessed until Oct 2015. Approximately 75% of people on DLA in the north
west are on indefinite awards.

Some people are essentially not employable/very difficult to employ due to
poor health, but will be taken off disability benefits as they no longer meet the
thresholds for the new PIP and so will be expected to look for work. May be
many people in this category and this is likely to impact on services.

Mental health problems were raised as a particular concern as their health
could be made worse by the benefits reform, as people will struggle on the
lower income without disability benefit and will potentially be unable to find
work. There aren’t many jobs around now anyway and people with mental
health and other disabilities, will be competing against people without
disabilities and often for zero hour contracts or low paid part time hours.

Appeals — People with a progressive condition, may be knocked back as
depends on how they presented on the day. Also re: giving evidence on their
conditions, people’s memories can be quite bad and they may not be able to
express themselves fully at the tribunal. Need to get hold of medical notes etc
to prove your case. GP reports often don’t provide a sound evidence base.
They do not say what the consequences are of the health conditions. Often
consultants and Community Psychiatric Nurses know more about a person’s
treatment than a GP

5.8.1 Conclusion

It was suggested that it will be people on the lower rate of DLA that will be
most impacted upon by the welfare changes, as they are unlikely to meet the
new criteria for PIP . The welfare reforms essentially mean people will have to
manage on reducing benefits, whilst at the same time deal with increasing
costs. People who are working are often on a limited working week etc and so
there is likely to be a big impact on health.

5.8.2 Recommendations:
e to consider how we could better support people through the

appeals process, by working together with health services to get
people access to the information and support they need.

15|Page



Page 77

o to establish the right measures to enable us to monitor the impact
of welfare reforms in Halton, for example breakdown of health
issues by ward for DLA and other benefits

(not a recommendation)
5.9 Welfare Reform and the impact on disabled people — Dave Gray

Currently the benefits system doesn’t cope well with change? People on zero
hours contracts are entitled to pay when not working, but there is little faith
that the system will be able to cope with managing real time change in line
with changes in people’s circumstances.

Benefits changes have resulted in contribution based Employment Support
Allowance (ESA) limited to 12 months under most circumstances. , Many
people are not aware as yet of these changes, but they are having a
significant impact.

Non means tested Attendance Allowance, DLA (new claims only up till age
16) mobility and personal care, PIP (came in from April) points based system
not cope will people with low levels of care. PIP can only be newly claimed by
people of working age. Those disabled under 16 will still be claiming DLA.

People with lower levels of disability will lose out and the focus of the reforms
has been to support most in need. Incapacity benefit abolished in 2008 but
many are still on it. ESA is much harder to get. Over 3 year period all being
reassessed (we are in last year of this). Those on IB assessed for new benefit
(roughly 40% being assessed as fit for work) but with support for appeals
nearly 90% are successful. People who are likely to be unsuitable for work
and may never have worked or not worked for many years; some over 60, are
now being asked to seek work.

Dave Gray gave two case studies from people whom he has been involved.
He expects that there will be more marginal cases coming forward, many with
mental health problems who are older. We will help everyone that comes to
the council for support, but we have to prioritise the level of support we can
give.

Advice Services transition Fund that CAB have in partnership with 3 other
voluntary organisations will help to better support people through welfare
changes. This funding will be used to redesign services and ensure better
partnership working across the sector within the borough and will improve the
support given to those most vulnerable to the changes brought in by the
Welfare Reform Act.

5.9.1 Conclusion

Indefinate awards DLA will not be re-assessed until 2015 and afterwards but
effects will be noticeable, Halton will be second most affected borough out of
325 LAs. Change will be incremental over time so will get noticed less.

People with lower levels of disability will lose out and the focus of the reforms
has been to support most in need.

16| Page



Page 78

Incapacity benefit abolished in 2008 but many are still on it. ESA is much
harder to get. Over 3 year period all being reassessed (we are in last year of
this). Those on IB assessed for new benefit (roughly 40% being assessed as
fit for work) but with support for appeals nearly 90% are successful. People
who are likely to be unsuitable for work and may never have worked or not
worked for many years; some over 60, are now being asked to seek work.

The council is only one of many agencies helping people. However demand
for help is likely to outstrip supply but will recruit more volunteers to give
support at a lower level, rather than the complex cases. Issue can be the
quality of the advice that people get? Complicated how the different benefits
work together and it can be difficult to advise people on which benefits to or
not to apply for. Advice is really critical. Also carers allowance is very
complicated, so people are likely to need advice and support.

5.9.2 Recommendations:

Consider how we could better support people with lower levels of
disability who are more likely to lose out with the benefits reforms.

5.10 Welfare Reform - The perspective from a voluntary sector
group that supports disabled people in Halton — David
Atkinson Link:- http://www.haltondisability.org.uk/

Halton Disability Group employs 3 part time staff. They have noticed a steady
increase in people seeking advice on disability benefits. Training people to
give good advice is critical. Need to share knowledge of who is best placed to
give what advice.

The group has one information and advice support officer and have been
successful in obtaining a 5 year grant from the lottery.

They are seeing 3 or 4 people are coming through the door once a week, but
they recognise that people are also using other agencies, such as CAB etc.
Currently there is limited training for advisors and some are accredited and
some are not. CAB want to work with a more pooled resource. Link up with
transition funding as a starting point. Also there is a steering group looking at
having a strategic managers’ forum rather than front line service provision.
Warrington Disability services co-located, could we look at?

5.10.1 Conclusion

A one stop shop approach to benefits advice and support would be great, we
currently have disaggregated service provision. Also we could have more
services co-located. If people fall out of benefits and can’t work, this will have
very expensive consequences for people and services.

5.10.2 Recommendations:

17| Page



Page 79

Consider the feasibility of a one stop shop approach to benefit advice
and support, either through co-location of services and/or a one front
door approach with referrals to the most appropriate support service.

5.11 Welfare Reform a perspective from the Council’s Employment
Learning and Skills Division - Siobhan Saunders, Divisional
Manager, Employment, Learning and Skills

Siobhan gave an overview of the impact of the welfare reforms on the long
term unemployed that are on the work programme. The advisors are now
seeing examples of people being evicted and getting into rent arrears. In
terms of council tax, many never had to pay before and are in denial about
having to pay. There is a shortage of one bed flats so they are unable to
downsize to avoid the bedroom tax. More people are now in arrears which has
a knock on effect on other appointments etc. Also if they move properties they
may need to leave the area that they grew up in, which impacts on their
mental health. Some people are being taken off disability benefits that are not
well enough to work. .Siobhan circulated info on the impact of welfare reform
on HPIJ customers, attached in Annex 3.

Universal jobs match, new job seekers claimant etc now all done on line. JCP
have a target to get more services on line. This is really difficult for people with
limited skills or who can’t read. Therefore mistakes are being made. Libraries
and some businesses have offered to make computer facilities available.

There are some initiatives that we do that support customers as set out in the
information attached. All advisors need good knowledge of other services eg.
drug and alcohol. Staff have access to food bank vouchers to help people in
the short term.

5.11.1 Conclusion

The work programme advisors are starting to see people being evicted from
their homes, increasing numbers with arrears etc. These instances represent
the beginning of the fallout from the welfare reforms, but these are ramping up
all the time. Some people are paying but are going into debt so only a matter
of time before they can no longer pay. Increasingly access to benefits and
jobs is on line, so we need to ensure people have the right skills and access
to IT in order to apply. There is a lack of one bedroom properties to enable
those hit by a bedroom tax (they cannot afford) to move.

5.11.2 Recommendations:

Improve public internet access and support - Establish internet centres
that we can open up to public access to help people use on line services and

18| Page



Page 80

access applications for benefits etc. Also possibly hold an open day event at
libraries with support staff available to help access on line services.

Housing - To further promote the principle of house swaps and liaise with
HHT to determine the most appropriate way of achieving this

6.0 Overall Conclusion

This scrutiny review has been both a successful and a worthwhile exercise in
terms of covering all the outputs and outcomes from the initial topic brief and
gaining a sound knowledge and understanding of the issues affecting and
resulting from the benefit reforms in Halton.

It is recognised that there is much good practice happening in Halton and
excellent working relationships between the council and our partners and the
public.

There are recommendations for further improvement that have been identified

from this scrutiny review and these have been arranged into an Action Plan at
Annex ? for ease of reference and monitoring.

19| Page



Page 81

Annex 1
TOPIC BRIEF
Topic Title: Welfare Reform Topic Group
Officer Lead: Operational Director (Employment, Enterprise and
Property)
Planned start date: June 2013
Target PPB Meeting: January 2014

Topic Description and scope:

A review of the current issues associated with the Government welfare
reforms in Halton, focusing on understanding how the reforms will impact on
the objectives and work of the Employment, Learning, Skills and Community

PPB.

Why this topic was chosen:

Key outputs and outcomes sought:

What, if anything, are we doing/have done to address these issues
both as a Council and as a partnership for our residents?

Is there any information/documentation that has been produced or
which needs to be produced to advise our staff/customers/residents on
the changes?

How can we best collaborate with partners in order to mitigate the
impact of the Welfare Reform Act in Halton?

Are there any changes needed in how we deliver our services. Do we
anticipate an increase/change in demand for the services provided?

What are the problems and impacts facing pilot areas?

Rules and changes and more being introduced and we need to assess
this.

Bill/Act is quite broad; impact of how we cope from both Member and
Officer perspective.

Use of the Topic Group to set KPIs to evaluate impact.
Consider impact on housing associations.

Assess and map out systems already in place.

20|Page



Page 82

Impact of and on Welfare Rights Service.

Map out Training facilities — what is available?
The impact on access to services.

Possible use of Schools.

Need to factor in bedroom tax and partner input.

Also Housing Strategy and whether this reflects changes in Welfare
Reform

Which of Halton’s 5 strategic priorities this topic addresses and the key
objectives and improvement targets it will help to achieve:

Employment, Learning and Skills:

To develop a strong, diverse, competitive and sustainable local
economy.

To foster a culture of enterprise and entrepreneurship and make Halton
an ideal place to start and grow economic activity.

To develop a culture where learning is valued and skill levels
throughout the adult population and across the local workforce can be
raised.

To promote and increase the employability of local people and tackle
barriers to employment to get more people into work.

To maximise an individual’s potential to manage and increase their
income.

Including access to appropriate, supportive advice services.

Nature of expected/desired PPB input:

Member led scrutiny review of the impact of the welfare reforms on the
Employment, Learning and Skills priority.

Preferred mode of operation:

Invite speakers from partner agencies who have been directly involved
with the welfare reforms to provide an overview of the process and
implications for residents and partners.

Presentations from relevant officers within the Council to examine
current practice regarding managing the welfare reforms and

21| Page



Page 83

implications for the council and in particular the Employment, Learning
Skills and Community Policy and Performance Board

e Invite partners including Department of Work and Pensions and the
voluntary sector to give their perspective of the welfare reforms in
Halton

Agreed and signed by:

22| Page



METHODOLOGY DETAIL

a) Presentations

Page 84

Annex 2

The following officers gave presentations as part of this scrutiny review:

Name of officer

Title of Presentation

Wesley Rourke

Potential Impact of Welfare
Reform and the impacts on the
Employment, Learning & Skills
Priority

Overall Financial Impact
Assessment - Sheffield Hallam
University Research

Setting a baseline position and
measuring impacts (identifying
KPls)

David Gray

Welfare Reform Overview

Welfare Reform and the impact
on disabled people

Shelah Semoff

A Halton Strategic Partnership
perspective — i) Mapping
Partners’ support; ii) partner
responses to the welfare reform
agenda; iii) joint working
opportunities.

Debbie Houghton

Policy and Research Low Pay
No Pay

Halton and national data on low
paid and temporary work

Disability and
employment/unemployment -
A Halton Perspective

Billy Jones — Runcorn Veterans
association

Welfare Reform and the Armed
Forces

Ste Lloyd (DWP)

Welfare Reform Key Issues

23| Page




Page 85

and Challenges for Disabled
people

Welfare Reform Key Issues
and Challenges for those on
the low pay no pay cycle

David Atkinson

Welfare Reform - The
perspective from a voluntary
sector group that supports
disabled people in Halton

Siobhan Saunders

Welfare Reform a perspective
from the Council’s Employment
Learning and Skills Division

24| Page




222222

Page 86

.
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Children and Enterprise
Directorate



Page 87

Annex 3

Documents Considered within the review

Corporate Plan - 2011 — 2016
http://moderngov.halton.gov.uk/documents/s14868/ExecB%2022Sept11%20DftCorpPlanApp
end.doc.pdf

Sustainable Community Strategy — 2011 — 2026
http://hbc/services/policystrategy/Policy%20Documents/Policy%20and%20Strategy/Sustainab
le%20Comunity%20Strategy%202011%20Final.pdf

Welfare Reform Literature Review

B
Welfare Reform
Literature Review.do

Welfare Reform Local Services
Welfargeform
Local Services - versit

Welfare Reform Booklet
Welfargeform
booklet v7 - final. pdf

Welfare Reforms Impact on HPIJ Customers

@j

Welfare reform
impact on HP1J custoi

Potential impacts of the Welfare Reforms for ELS & C

@j

Potential Impact of
Welfare Reformon tt

Low paid jobs data for Halton

@j

low pay jobs
data.docx

Disability Data for Halton

@j

disability data.docx
Halton’s Welfare Changes impact

HALTON's Welfare
Changes impact.docx



ELS & C PPB Welfare Reform Scrutiny Review

Annex 4

ACTION PLAN

Action | Action Who Timescale Progress Update

No.

1 Produce a resource pack of information | Steve Doore Completed Completed and attached in
relating to welfare reform Annex 3

2 . .
Adult education support to help ensure Siobhan Saunders Ongoing IT, literacy and numeracy

people have the necessary IT, literacy
and numeracy skills and budgetary skills

classes are offered by ELS
Adult Learning at Acorn and
Kingsway Learning Centres
and at other venues across the
borough. Managing Money
classes are delivered by Adult
Learning in Children’s Centres.
Employability Programmes,
including the HEP Award, are
also delivered in ELS venues.

Work Programme and National
Careers Service clients are
regularly referred to this
provision to assist them in
improving their skills and
employment prospects and to

gg abed



move them nearer to the job
market.

Need more advocacy support. Ideal is for
duty advisors to be at court picking up
those without representation. We don'’t
have the capacity to represent everyone
in need.

David Gray

This action is not
viable at this time

This is an ideal although very
expensive and time consuming
service that isn’'t practical and
can’t be resourced at this time

Development and roll out of “Halton Go- | Partnership Steering Ongoing Report currently drafted and
ON” project Group with support from once agreed by the steering
Shelah Semoff group will go through relevant
partner approval before project
launched
, , ) Ongoing Performance measures will be
Consider a data analysis for Halton in | pepbie Houghton agreed as part of the
relation to the Sheffield Hallam measures development of the Child and
Family Poverty Strategy
Encourage other employers to set up paid | Wesley Rourke Ongoing

Internships, similar to that run by Halton
Borough Council. Also encourage
businesses to offer work experience
placements and opportunities for
voluntary work.

Halton Borough Council does
not offer paid internships. The
HEP team have arranged a
couple of unpaid voluntary
internships for clients earlier
this year which have now come
to an end.

As part of its employer

28

68 abed



engagement activity, the HEP
team do work with local
employers to source work
experience placements and
graduate internships for
unemployed residents. These
are normally unpaid and are
undertaken on a voluntary
basis and priority for the
placements is given to Work
Programme clients (required as
part of WP contracts).

As part of the People Plan and
the Talent Strategy, there are
plans to work with council
departments to recruit
volunteers, graduates and
apprentices.

Service providers could do more to
maximise the skills that voluntary staff
can bring to an organisation. They have
now increased the number of hours that
you can do on a voluntary basis

Wesley Rourke/John
Gallagher

Ongoing

The HEP Manager has recently
been able to gain support from
HBC Senior Management to
help increase the number of
work experience placements
across the Council.

As part of the People Plan and
the Talent Strategy, there are
plans to work with council
departments to recruit

29

06 abed



volunteers, graduates and
apprentices.

8 Greater need to provide opportunities for | Gill Bennett/ Steve Ongoing Curriculum support packs
residents to develop budgeting and IT | Nyakatawa — Lead for developed and currently being
skills, particularly important as new | schools working with promoted to schools through
benefits system will rely on online | Trading Standards Trading Standards
systems. (Sue Riley (JCP) to take up with
each LA in the sub region. Will take time
so don’'t want payday lenders to benefit
from this. Sue must set up a plan that
reflects problems in Halton. )

9 Consider organising a credit union join up | Wesley Rourke/ Debbie | TBA This work can be considered
day for council staff and also work with | Houghton as part of the development of
other employers in the borough to the Child and Family Poverty
encourage their employees to join the Strategy
Credit Union.

10 Need to develop appropriate indicators to | Wesley Rourke/ Neil TBA This work will be completed as
measure the impact of the benefit reforms | McSweeney part of the development of the
in Halton Child and Family Poverty

Strategy

11 Need to consider how we could better | Julia Rosser (health)/ TBA as part of Currently there is an
support people through the appeals | /David Gray development of inconsistent service from GPs.
process, by working together with health the Child and Some will provide the
services to get people access to the Family Poverty information at the request of
information and support they need. Strategy the individual at no cost, others

charge up to £100+, others will
only provide info at the request
of DWP and not to the

30

16 ebed



individual.

12 Consider how we could better support Wesley Rourke/ David TBA as part of Under the new benefits regime
people with lower levels of disability who | Gray the development | some people will lose their
are more likely to lose out with the of the Child and | benefits as the rules have
benefits reforms. (If we have access to Family Poverty changed substantially.
data on the people in Halton on low level Strategy However welfare rights will
DLA, we could target early support.) assist people with Mandatory

reconsiderations and appeals.
Actions might include
awareness raising ( such as
that ongoing with Halton
disability forum), and promoting
the services that can help
more.

13 Consider the feasibility of a one stop shop | Peter McCann Ongoing Co-location of services would
type approach to benefit advice and be very expensive and there is
support, either through co-location of no commitment to do so at this
services and/or a one front door approach time. A front door type
with referrals to the most appropriate approach where people phone
support service. Also explore the one provider but are then
possibility of piloting a welfare reform referred to other providers as
information stall in Halton’s market(s) appropriate is more feasible.

CAB are producing a directory
which will help with the referral
process but already have good
informal referral processes in
place.

14

Establish public internet access centres

IT drop in sessions are

31

26 abed



where the public have support to help
them access on line services and access
application forms for benefits, jobs etc

Siobhan Saunders /
Library staff

Ongoing

delivered by ELS Adult
Learning at Acorn and
Kingsway Learning Centres.
The contents of these sessions
are determined by the needs of
the learners. CV workshops
and two-week employability
courses are also delivered at
both Learning Centres. HPIJ
Advisers also deliver
workshops in job searching, job
applications and interview skills
to Work Programme clients at
several venues across the
borough. (HPIJ deliver 2 Work
Programme contracts for
Halton for Ingeus and A4E)

Public PCs are provided at
HPIJ’s offices in Rutland House
and Moor Lane to enable
clients to job search and make
online job applications.

Public PCs area also available
in Halton’s Libraries where staff
can give support. There are
also a number of work Clubs
across the Borough offering
similar facilities and support.

32

o6 obed



15

Open day HHT, so people can turn up
and look to swap houses. Could we get

all HAs together and hold a bigger event.

The Strategic Housing
Partnership

Ongoing

All HAs are required to offer
free membership for their
tenants to one of a small
number of national online
exchange schemes (Abritas,
Locata, Homeswapper, House
Exchange.). HHT held a first
event in  September but
attendance was poor. A
second event is planned for
30" October, involving HHT,
Riverside, LHT, Plus Dane and
Guinness so the HAs are
already working together on
this.

This is core business for the
HAs

16

Consider one day event(s) at library with
support staff to assist people access
internet services

Library staff/ Peter
McCann

Keep under
review

Library staff already support
people in accessing IT.
Currently the only benefit
accessed on line is relatively
straight forward to complete.
Hence demand is not currently
there for putting welfare rights
staff in libraries.

Keep under review however it
would need to be resourced if a
decision was made to put such
a service in place in the future

33

6 ebed



17 Consider how to better engage with Strategic Housing Ongoing The homeless service already
private landlords re making available one | partnership makes as much use as it can of
bed properties. Links between private the private sector to
sector HA and public sector HA. accommodate homeless

households, but it also is
experiencing a shortage of
smaller properties.

Not sure how much demand
there would be for private
sector tenancies from HA
sector given the unfavourable
comparison in terms of rent
levels, security of tenure,
maintenance and management
etc.

18 Consider review of planning policy to Strategic Housing Keep under Keep under review. However
build one bed homes etc. However we Partnership/ Tim Gibbs | review. one bedroom properties would
recognise that should Government policy no longer be as desirable if the
change around bedroom tax, these bedroom tax policy changed
properties would no longer be as
desirable.

19 Consider expanding Property Pool Plus to | Strategic Housing Ongoing There is already a facility for

include private sector

Partnership

private landlords to advertise
on PPP and we have started to
use this in Halton, but only for
‘accredited’ landlords.

34

G obed



Page 96



Page 97 Agenda Item 7b

REPORT TO: Employment, Learning, Skills and Community
Policy and Performance Board

DATE: 11 November 2013

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Children & Enterprise

PORTFOLIO: Resources
SUBJECT: Business Planning 2014 -17
WARDS: Boroughwide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To offer a timely opportunity for Members to contribute to the
development of Directorate Business Plans for the coming financial year.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION
That the Board

i. Notes the contents of the report
ii. Provides initial suggestions of priority areas for service
development and improvement over the next 3 years.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 Each Directorate of the Council is required to develop a medium-term
business plan, in parallel with the budget, that is subject to annual review
and refresh. The process of developing such plans for the period 2014-
2017 is just beginning.

3.2 At this stage members are invited to identify a small number of priorities
for development or improvement (possibly 3-5) that they would like to
see reflected within those plans. Strategic Directors will then develop
draft plans which will be available for consideration by Policy and
Performance Boards early in the New Year.

3.3 Wihilst providing a Directorate context each of the Directorate Business
Plans will contain appendices identifying specific Departmental activities
and performance measures and targets that will provide a focus for the
on-going monitoring of performance throughout the 2014 — 15 financial
year.

3.4 It is important that Members have the opportunity to provide input at this
developmental stage of the planning process, particularly given on-going



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Page 98

budget pressures, to ensure that limited resources remain aligned to
local priorities.

It should be noted that plans can only be finalised once budget decisions
have been confirmed in March and that some target information may
need to be reviewed as a result of final outturn data becoming available
post March 2014.

To assist the Board, in the last two years a special meeting of this PPB
has been convened to give full opportunity for Members to look at the
identified issues and challenges facing the areas that fall within the
Boards remit over the period of the next plan through a presentation, as
well as proposed priorities for the Children & Enterprise Directorate. The
session would provide opportunity to add to any issue and ensure all
additional issues and challenges have been considered.

The priority for the Directorate identified within the Business Plan 2013-
16 is:

® Driving the economic prosperity of Halton to the benefit of residents
and the workforce

Further information on these priorities is attached within Appendix A,
together with detail of identified cross-cutting and Business Ciritical
Issues. Appendix B offers an indicative summary on a page of what the
Directorate Business Plan will include.

The timeframe for plan preparation, development and endorsement is as
follows:

Information / Purpose Timeframe
PPB Discussion with relevant Operational / | October / November
Strategic Directors concerning emerging issues, | 2013 PPB cycle
proposed priorities etc.
Portfolio Strategic Directors to discuss with Portfolio | October / November
Holders Holders emerging issues, proposed priorities | 2013

etc.

Directorate

To receive and endorse advanced drafts of

SMT dates to be agreed

SMT’s Directorate Plans with Strategic Directors
Corporate To receive and comment upon / endorse | Early December 2013
Management advanced drafts of Directorate Plans
Team
Portfolio Strategic Directors to discuss with Portfolio | Late December 2012/
Holders Holders advanced draft plans, including | January 2014

relevant departmental service objectives/

milestones and performance indicators.
PPB’s Advanced draft plans including details of | January 2014

relevant departmental service | PPB Cycle

objectives/milestones and

indicators

performance




4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

Page 99

Executive Board | To receive advanced drafts of Directorate Plans | 7™ February 2013

for approval

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Business Plans continue to form a key part of the Council’s policy
framework and will need to reflect known and anticipated legislative
changes.

Elected Member engagement would be consistent with existing “Best
Value Guidance” to consult with the representatives of a wide range of
local persons with regards to formulating plans and strategies.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS
Directorate Plans will identify resource implications.

Such plans will form the foundation of the performance monitoring
reports received by Elected Members and Management Team on a
quarterly basis.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCILS PRIORITIES

The annual review of medium-term business plans is one means by
which we ensure that the strategic priorities of the Council inform, and
are informed by, operational activity.

RISK ANALYSIS

The development of a Directorate Plan will allow the authority to both
align its activities to the delivery of organisational and partnership
priorities and to provide information to stakeholders as to the work of the
Directorate over the coming year.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

Directorate Business Plans, and the determination of service objectives,
are considered in the context of the Council’s equality and diversity
agenda.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

There are no relevant background documents to this report.




Page 100

Appendix A: Children & Enterprise Directorate Priorities 2013-16

Overarching

Effectively Managing Resources to Deliver Services
Theme e Workforce
o Asset Management - finance, physical capacity, low carbon economy

Driving economic
prosperity

Directorate
Priorities

Integrated
Commissioning

Child’s journey
through the
continuum of [
need

Improving
opportunities for our
most vulnerable
young people

Directorate
Business
Critical
Issues

Agree common
understanding of
commissioning

Use the Munro
Review of Child
Protection to

Narrow the
attainment gap
between vulnerable

Maintain HBC
assets in order to
provide a
sustainable flow

[
[

term sustainability
& development of

embed common
understanding of

[

Integrated Early
Help Strategy

across improve groups and their

Directorate, outcomes for peers by early of income and
Council and with children and identification of capital
partners families need

Support the long- Continue to Launch Halton Implications of

Welfare Reform
and the Single

key service Early Help. Programme
providers
Ensure Early Implement and Support School Develop

Years, school and embed Halton’s H Improvement apprenticeship
post-16 provision Early Help opportunities and
is sufficient, Strategy and support
sustainable and local offer. apprentices

high quality

Ensure sufficient Safeguarding - Measuring Delivering a
integrated and review capacity progression of comprehensive
targeted support and caseloads pupils and schools employment,
for young people for social learning and skills
in the borough workers. service

Develop role as Improve Raising attendance, Mersey Gateway
broker or I outcomes for participation and investment
commissioner of Children in Care achievement

services as well as and Care

provider Leavers

Work with other Recruit and Tackling health Developing
partners to ensure retain Children’s . inequalities European Social
we improve I Social Care Fund bid
outcomes for all, managers to

focusing on our ensure

most vulnerable. management

Improving Child oversight and Tackling Child & Delivering a

Health Outcomes

s

ensure effective
care planning

Family Poverty

comprehensive
development and
investment service

Interface with the
Private Sector
and employer
facing services




Page 101

Ann Mclintyre Tracey Coffey Steve Nyakatawa Wes Rourke

Appendix B - Indicative Directorate Plan Executive Summary -
Enterprise

Outcome-
Focussed
Priorities

Driving Economic prosperity of Halton to the benefit of residents and the
workforce

Key
Objectives

Strategically manage and maintain the Council’s assets in order to provide a sustainable flow
of income and capital receipts as well as ensure that they are safe and fit for purpose

Deliver a comprehensive development and investment service

Deliver a comprehensive employment, learning and skills service

Major
Activities

Supporting the development of combined authority in areas of Economic Development and
Employment Learning and Skills

HBC are leading on the development of the Assisted area map for the LCR

Develop and assist with delivery of actions to be funded through Halton’s European
Structural Funding allocation of £16,927,600 from 2014 — 2020

Secure external funding for key strategic priorities in Halton

Working with MerseyLink to deliver agreed job, training, supply chain and school
engagement outcomes for local people, schools and businesses

Support local people into jobs through HPIJ

Support new business start ups in Halton

Encourage new apprenticeships and traineeships across the borough

Continuing with the delivery of the council’s 3 to 5 year Asset Disposals Programme. £2.3m
has been received over the last 2 years.

Energy Management — meeting the reduced emissions target of between 5% and 10% from
2010/11 levels over a 5 year period.

Support the new adult learning and skills tutor contracts that have been renewed

The council’s homeworking Policy will be revised to take account of major road works which
will take place as part of the Mersey gateway Development (Jan start)

Where funding is available, the council will look to improve and manage its’ assets for the
benefit of the community to improve service delivery.

We will maximise rental income from our Operational estate by actively seeking other public
sector partners to share accommodation where feasible in order to reduce expenditure.
Continue to support the two business Improvement Districts (BIDS) as businesses have
voted for them to continue for the next 5 years

Mersey Gateway acquisitions/disposals/ demolitions

Support business in the town centres through the Town Team and town centre grants
Development agreement Bayer

Venture Fields Barwood

Sci Tech Daresbury

Challenges

Changes in shopping habits impacting on the vibrancy of town centres

Combined Authority will result in how funding is allocated for regeneration in Halton
Delivery of outcomes required for MerseyGateway

Low land values affects investment on key strategic sites

Funding regimes out of sequence, leading to delays in completion of projects
Difficult sites to remediate in Halton require greater remediation

National transfer of assets

Mersey Gateway — in short-term project could cause delay to adjacent sites
Impacts of the Welfare Reforms, for example more people on the Work Programme with
mental health problems

Payment by results and more challenging targets in Work Programme

Lead

Wesley Rourke




Indicative Directorate Plan Executive Summary — Children’s

Page 102

Outcome- Integrated = Commissioning | Effectively supporting the | Improving opportunities for all
Focussed of services to meet the | child’s journey through the | through closing the gap for
Priorities needs of children, young | Halton Levels of Need most vulnerable children
people and families in | Framework when additional | and young people
Halton needs arise
Key Objectives | ¢ Ensure Early Years | e Improve outcomes for Increase the percentage of

Provision for children is
sufficient, sustainable and

Children in Care and Care
Leavers

schools and

Early Years

settings where Ofsted judge

of appropriate quality e Improve outcomes  for overall effectiveness to be good
e Ensure school and post-16 children and families or better.
provision is  sufficient, through embedding Increase the GCSE attainment
sustainable and of integrated processes to for 5 or more A*-C including
appropriate quality deliver Early Help & Support English and Maths
e |Improve outcomes for | e Ensure that the changes Narrow the gap in attainment
children and young people required by the Munro between vulnerable groups and
through  effective  joint Review of Child Protection their peers through early
commissioning, with to practice improves identification of need
emphasis on our most outcomes for children and
vulnerable children and families
young people e Recruit and retain Children’s
e Improve outcomes for Social Care Managers to
children and young people deliver the necessary level
through integrated and of scrutiny and management
targeted youth support oversight to ensure effective
care planning
Major Activities | ¢«  Partnership working to e Implementation and rollout Development of Learning &
reduce NEET and of new Halton Children’s Achievement Strategy
increase participation in Trust Levels of Need Development of further
Further Education and Framework Transition activities for children
Training post 16 e Developing further Early & young people 0-25
e Exploring new options for Help & Support resource Implementing all aspects of
Alternative Provision across Halton Children’s Children & Families Bill in
e Capital Investment & Trust Halton, including SEND

Maintenance Programme
Increased range and
volume of youth provision
across Halton.

Exploring options for
integrated commissioning
of services with CWAC
and other local authority
areas.

Development of Pan-
Cheshire Missing from
Home Service
Implementation of
Inspiring Families

Implementing new approach
to performance reporting
and case files

Planning and preparation for
future external judgements
of services

Achievement & Attainment at
all Key Stages

Narrowing the Gap, Peer
Challenge and Virtual School
for Vulnerable Pupils

Understanding and ensuring all

schools meet requirements of
new Ofsted School Inspection
Framework

Challenges e Raising the Participation | ¢ Changing external Schools and Academies
Age inspection landscape Meeting requirements of
e Information, Advice & |e Ensuring intervention and Children & Families Bill by
Guidance children supported at the planned implementation dates.
e Early Intervention Grant earliest stage. Understanding all factors that
o (Capital e Adapting and implementing need tackling to close the gap
e Early Years new ways of working
e Provision e Ensuring we support
e Workforce Deve|opment children in residential care
e Sustainability » Safeguarding
Lead Ann Mclntyre Tracey Coffey Steve Nyakatawa




Page 103



	Agenda
	3 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
	4 EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES
	EXB4APP

	5 SSP Minutes
	ELS SSP Minutes 29 7 13

	6a Local Economic Assessment (LEA) - Presentation
	LEA.pdf
	ELSC PPB_LEA

	6b Outcomes of 2011 Skills for Life Survey and improvements in Halton
	6c Children and Enterprise Quarterly Policy Update
	Ofsted Single Inspection Framework

	7a Draft Welfare Reform Scrutiny Review Report and Recommendations
	ELSC PPB 11 11 13 Draft Welfare Reform Scrutiny Review  23rd October.doc

	7b Business Planning 2014 -17

